Town of Colchester, Connecticut

127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, Connecticut 06415

INCORPURATET

Mary Bylone, First Selectman

Board of Selectman Agenda
Meeting via Zoom
Thursday, August 19, 2021 @ 7 PM
(ALL ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE SUBJECT TO POSSIBLE ACTION)
Please use the link below to join the webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/858471625907pwd=c0k2cXRpc25WV3BGL3pISOdWhjI57209
Or Telephone:
US: +1 929 205 6099 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 669 900 6833
or+1 253 215 8782 or +1 346 248 7799
Webinar ID: 858 4716 2590
Passcode: 502176

. 8 ..
1. CALL TO ORDER &= =
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Lot B 2R
3. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA aus o g%
4. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS | § = 50
5. CORRESPONDENCE: ATTACHED ‘“§ ¥ o
6. CONSENT AGENDA e

A. Approve Minutes of the August 5 Board of Selectmen Meeting
B. Reappointment of Gregg LePage as member to the Sewer and Water Commiésion for a term to expire
10/1/2024
C. Reappointment of Robeit Peter as member to the Sewer and Water Commission for a term to expire
10/1/2021
D. Reappointment of Heide Perham as member to the Economic Development Commission for a term to
expire 10/31/2026
E. Tax Abatements
7. Authorization of Professional Services for Town Green Bus Shelter
8. Application for Permitium Online Vital Request System
9. Mailing of Absentee Ballot Applications
10. Police Department AXON Technology Assurance Plan (TAP)
11. NECCOG Contract
12. Set Town Meeting Date for CORE (Colchester’s Openness to Respecting Equity)
13. Set Town Meeting Date for Town Budget

14. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS
CEN- PN h 860-537-7220 CrerALsEg sk L ey

s
RENL P

PRSIV Sy N e




15. FIRST SELECTMAN’S REPORT
16. LIAISON REPORTS
17. ADJOURN

860-537-7220




writing and or electronic emails or text
messages between the First Selectman’s
office and Officer Eric Watrous and any
other State of Connecticut employees and
or the Town of Colchester, CT regarding
my (Schuster) speeding ticket and
subsequent arrest charging me of
“impersonating and officer of the law.”

2. All written correspondence in
writing and or electronic emails or text
messages between the First Selectman’s
office and Colchester Police officer
Dominick Sullivan regarding the complaint
filed by the First Selectman and any others
involved in said complaint that resulted in
my (Schuster) requested appearance in
the Police Departments office resulting in
the “victim/witness statement” that you
attached to your Freedom of Information
request.

Requested by What is requested Date Date Acknowledged | Date Fulfilled
requested/received
Steve Schuster 1. All written correspondence in 7/18/2021 7/18/2021

August 2021 FOI Requests




Town of Colchester, Connecticut

127 Norwich Avenue, Colchester, Connecticut 06415

Mary Bylone, First Selectman

Board of Selectinan Minutes
Meeting via Zoom
Thursday, August 5, 2021 @ 7 PM
(ALL ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE SUBJECT TO POSSIBLE ACTION)
Members Present: First Selectman Mary Bylone, Selectmen Rosemary Coyle, Denise Turner and Taras Rudko
Members Absent: Selectman Denise Mizla

Others Present: Anton Smith, Alex Levere, Kevin Byrne, Cragin Memorial Library Director Kate Byroade, CFO
Maggie Cosgrove, Town Planner Matt Bordeaux, Director of Public Works Jim Paggioli

. CALL TO ORDER: First Selectman Mary Bylone called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.
2, PLEDGE OIF ALLEGIANCE

3. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA: D. Turner motioned to remove the words Consent Agenda
and approve 6A and 6B separately, seconded by R. Coyle. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOU&[‘JY :
R. Coyle motioned to reverse 13 and 14 on the agenda, seconded by T. Rudko. MOTIOI\{;’E_F;_AR%ED;
UNANIMOUSLY g‘f = gﬁ

4. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS: K. Byme spoke in favor of the Noston Park project. «;—’ AL W E;

5. CORRESPONDENCE: NONE "5 DS

6 33 T o

A. Approve Minutes of the July 15 Board of Selectmen Meeting: D. Turner motioned to change the
wording on #7 of the minutes to read as follows: “Members of the Ad Hoc Committee on Diversity and

Inclusion presented their recommendation to establish a permanent Diversity Equity and Inclusion

Commission,” seconded by R. Coyle. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Approve 2022 contract for funding awarded for Making Memories Program and authorize the [First

Selectiman to sign all necessary documents: R, Coyle motioned to approve the FY 2022 contract for

funding awarded for the Making Memories Program and authorize the First Selectman to sign all

necessary documents, seconded by D. Turner. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

7. Colchester Concession Stand: Anton Smith and Alex Levere presented the name of the company they will be
operating the Concession Stand under, “The A-Team, LLC.” They will bring the full contract to the next

Board of Selectman meeting for final approval to operate the concession stand. No action taken.

Norton Park Eversource Grant: K. Byrne presented his Eversource Foundation Grant application. R. Coyle

motioned to support the submission of the Eversource grant application by the Norton Park Committee and

authorize the First Selectman to sign all necessary documents related to this grant, seconded by D. Turner,
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
Setectman@ColchesterCt.goy 860-537-7220

www.ColchesterCT.gov




9.

10.

L5

CIPA Filter at Cragin Memorial Library: R. Coyle motioned for the Board of Selectmen to consider the
appropriateness of implementing the CIPA-compliant internet filtering at the Cragin Memorial Library and
make a recommendation on moving forward, seconded by D. Turner. MOTION CARRIED
UNANIMOUSLY

Approval of Addendum to Purchasing Policy — Federal Uniform Guidance Requirements: R. Coyle motioned
to approve the purchasing policy addendum and the procurement standards document as an appendix,

seconded by T. Rudko. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

. Request to Conduct Activity on Town-Owned Land: D. Turner motioned that the Board of Selectmen

authorize Niantic Bay Group, LLC to conduct activity approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on
plans titled “Lot-5 Jordan Alley, 347 Cabin Road, Colchester, CT, prepared for John Doran, June 10, 2021,
revised July 15, 2021,” with the conditions that any and all contractors be appropriately insured and include
the Town of Colchester as additionally insured and that any and all bonding for the work be posted in
accordance with standards outlined in the Colchester Subdivision Regulation and by the State Statute,
seconded by R. Coyle. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

- RFP 2021- 03 Bid Award Rapallo Viaduct Sewer Repair: R. Coyle motioned that the Board of Selectmen,

acting as the WPCA, that the award of RFP 2021-03 Rapallo Viaduct Force Main Repair be awarded to J.
Fletcher Creamer & Sons of Hackensack, NJ, with Bid Alternate A included for a total of $438,930.00 and
aflocate from the Sewer Capital fund the same amount for the construction thereof, and authorize the First

Selectman to sign all necessary documents, seconded by D). Turner. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

. Contract Amendment #1 Environmental Partners Group — Engineering Inspection to Support RFP 2021-03:

D. Turner motioned that the Board of Selectmen, acting as the WPCA, approve the Contract Amendment
No.1 Dated July 2021 for Engineering and Supplemental Services with Environmental Partners Group, LLC
for the sum not to exceed $37,600 and authorize the First Selectman to sign all necessary documents,

seconded by T. Rudko. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

. RFP 2021-02 Bid Award and Appropriation for Demolition Services: R. Coyle motioned that the Board of

Selectmen hereby awards RFP 2021-02 Demotion Services -129 Westchester Road and 108 Mill Street to
Wiese Construction, Inc. of Norwich, CT for a total bid amount of $65,205.00 and authorize the First
Selectman to sign all necessary documents. Additionally, that the Board of Selectmen, authorize the expense
from the project to be funded from the existing Building and Grounds Reserve Fund (present unassigned
balance of approximately $146,000) with proper referral to the Board of Finance in accordance with the
policy for use of this fund adopted by both the Board of Selectmen and Board of Finance, seconded by D.
Tuner. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Set Town Meeting Date for Town Budget — No action taken.

16. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS: None

Selecimani@ColchesterCt.gov 860-537-7220 www. ColchesterC'l.pov




o 17. FIRST SELECTMAN’S REPORT: A COVID Update — Colchester is doing well with COVID numbers, but
New London County was one of the first hot spots as the numbers began to rise in the state. FS has mandated
mask wearing in all Town Buildings. This decision is to protect the Town Employees by not putting them at ris%
of petting sick and having to shut down town services. All Boards and Commission meetings are going back to
Zoom only format. Private meetings of community groups can still be held at Town Hall as long as they wear a
mask and practice social distancing.

18. LIAISON REPORTS: NONE TO REPORT

19. ADJOURN: T. Rudko motioned to adjourn at 7:48 p.m., seconded by R. Coyle. MOTION
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Selectman@ColchesterCl.gov 8§60-537-7220 wiwviv.ColchesterCT.gov




uoIsSsSIWWO) Iole M\ pUR Jomas

saBueys yum " Wi jew-a asea|d

sepuase x seynuIwW sisod }i3|D

€20T/1/9 wodjoe@3diejusy 896¢E£-198-098 a4 lloudiey yiauusy dSqUISN
£€202/0¢/9 worrews@/rendashuuol  G/76-7S5-098 eingag Auuoy Jaquiay
1702/1/01 BUISEIWOIDETTATedS]  /89¢-8/4-098 a a8edsq 83219 JoquIaA
120Z/1/9 Wwod ooyeA@gTQTPads 8VC9-LES-098 N J9HOPYO0H sewoy] 1SqUIDN
€20z/0¢/9 WoX0oA00|Se@UOS  ZEGT-£EG-098 N UBLUIG|IS UOY FIERENY
1202/1/01 18U’ [eqO|3ags @4a1addul CL6E-LES098 Y 19124 M=oy eyy a3iA
2eoz/1/9 1Bujeqolddgs@ajhoousydals  §158-/97-098  Q S]A0D uaydals Jieyd

a10g uoitpadx3 {1owW-3 auoyq Auogd SWDN Uo13IS0d

SWI3) 1e3A € ‘SIDQUIBIA] Z-UOISSIWILLIOY) JIIBAN PUB J9MIS



uoISsIWWo) Juawdo|aAag IUoUod3

saBueyd yum ySneueaed BN PUE XNESPIOY J1BAl Y104 [IBW-D 3583

seynuiw 73 sepuade sysod 7194

¥20Z/T1€/0T LNVOVA a1puIaY
geoz/st/aa LINVIVA 210UIdY
¥20Z/T€/0T wod'jiewd@sneapeu  go0Y-808-098 d neapen uess laquisiy
€70Z/1/0T Wod'coyeA@r00ZY00ZZ2IeNs| 8/ 80-067-098 N Z21ENS cdpuesny PquUIRA
120¢/1€/0T wodjlews@weyssday /985-£66-098 a WweyJdad spiaH 1oquisp
czoz/st/er INVOVA JBquisiy
€707/1€/0T WO [0B@H|YIUIYMW £ RET-109-098 Y SHIYOUIH [SBYIIN IBquiain
t20Z/1€/01 worAyearmambis@del  OTZ6-LES-098 n Sed yoef 12U 23IA
v20Z/1/01 woorAduadessipesed@Ba0niq  $H0/-/£S-098 Y ulalsp|oo 2an.g Jieyd

210 UoiLIIdXT j1oW-3 auoyd Arind auwnp uoi31504

SWIID) Je2A g ‘SalRLLId|Y Z SIBqUIRIAl Z-UOoISSIWLIWOY) Juawdo|aAag d1wouod3



TOWN OF COLCHESTER
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT

TO: Mary Bylone, First Selectman
Board of Selectmen

FROM: Matthew R. Bordeaux, Planning Director L{ﬂg
DATE: August 13, 2021
RE: Authorization to Execute Professional Services Agreement

The Proposal for Professional Services; Town Green Bus Shelter (see attached) is for
architectural and engineering services for the proposed bus shelter to be located on the Town
Green as part of the Connecticut Community Connectivity Grant Program award for the Town
Green Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvement Project.

Brewster Architects prepared conceptual, site plan and profile renderings for the grant
application and Historic District Commission Certificate of Appropriateness approvals. We are
now asking Mr. Brewster, RA, Principal at Brewster Architects to prepare construction
documents and construction administration services for the bus shelter.

As the project is set to be bid, preparation of the construction documents is necessary for the
project to move forward. In accordance with the grant program requirements, the Town of
Colchester is required to pay all design service fees associated with the project. Construction
administration costs are covered by the grant program. $2,500 in design fees for the preparation
of construction documents will come from the Planning and Code Administration Department’s
Professional Services budget.

I request the Board of Selectmen authorize the First Selectman to sign the proposal.

Proposed Motion:

Authorize the First Selectman to sign all necessary documents related to the Proposal for
Professional Services; Town Green Bus Shelter dated August 09, 2021, from Brewster Architects
for architectural and engineering services for the proposed Bus Shelter located on the Town
Green.

MRB

R:\Grants\Community Connectivity\Town Green Bike & Ped\Brewster Design Services\Authorization Memo to BOS.docx

Attach.



BREWSTER | ARCHITECTS uc
111 Cliver Road | Lebanon, Connecticut 06249
860.642.9907

August 09, 2021R&V

Mr. Matthew Bordeaux, Planner
Town of Colchester

127 Norwich Avenue
Colchester, CT 06415

Re:

Proposal for Professional Services; Town Green Bus Shelter

Dear Mr. Bordeaux:

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this proposal for architectural and engineering services for the
proposed Bus Shelter located on the Town Green.

The scope of the work as we understand it:

The intention is to build a new Bus Shelter, approximately 9 by 14 feet as rendered by B|A in the
attached concept, dated 03Aug2018.

o The building will consist of a partially enclosed/covered waiting area, glass front and rear walls
for security and transparency, and painted posts/trim and bell-shaped roof to relate to the
existing adjacent Gazebo. We will include the signage and media display as shown.

e Due to Code requirements for wind and uplift, the structure is proposed as a rigid steel post and
frame with framed roof on a concrete foundation. All steel components will be concealed with
trim/frame construction.

Brewster|Architects (B|A) will be a Prime Consultant to the Town of Colchester.
Souza Structural Engineering will be a sub-consultant to B|A.

We have excluded site engineering, including sidewalks and landscaping outside the building
footprint; these are to be provided by the Town Engineer, whom we are happy to coordinate with.

With the exception of lighting, we have excluded mechanical, electrical and fire protection
engineering.

The proposed interior bench seating will be selected to match the site amenities selected with the
Historic Commission for the Green. We will detail anchorage to the slab.

Construction Documents — These are the necessary drawings required for three things: final
pricing, permitting and construction.

e The construction drawings are based upon the approved Concept Drawings, dated 03Aug2018
with necessary construction details. Where there are approved changes to work already
completed, changes in scope, alternate designs or additional services required, we will be paid
additional compensation in accordance with the attached rate schedule.

e Design of the bus shelter will be in accordance with the State of Connecticut Building and Fire
Codes, State of Connecticut Health Code and all local codes and ordinances.

e Architecture services will include necessary design conferences max. of (2) two, preparation of
complete working drawings, specifications and limited contract administration.
Specifications/Notes will be included on the drawings.

Architecture includes:



o Design of the layout, interior elevations, materials selections, millwork, ceiling and finish plans.
e Contract Administration — Assist the Owner in reviewing bids from Contractor. This includes
answering Contractor’s questions, issuing Addenda (if required).

e During construction we will review the construction as needed to ensure that the successful
Contractor completes the work in accordance with the contract documents. The scope of contract
administration services is as follows:

e Submittal review, i.e. shop drawings, materials, finishes, etc.

e Conduct occasional field visits to review the work in place, max. of (2) two.
e Review and certify payment requests.

e Create punchlist.

e Code required Special Inspections and concrete testing are not anticipated due to the minimal
size of the project. A separate fee can be provided in the event that it is determined to be
required.

Exclusions + Qualifications

This Proposal includes only Architectural Consulting services for the proposed project and specifically

excludes the following:
= ADA Compliance except as Code required for the specific building outlined above.

Code issue resolution not specifically pertaining to the scope of this project.

Work related to Hazardous Materials (lead paint, asbestos) / abatement.

Site and Civil Engineering, Survey and Landscaping design.

Electrical, Plumbing, Mechanical or Fire Protection Engineering.

Acoustic Design, Kitchen equipment layouts.

LEED certification, documentation or project submittals.

Detailed cost estimates, Life cycle cost analysis, Value Engineering.

Signage, except as required by Code.

Progress job meetings, which are above and beyond the stated number of visits, will be charged out at the hourly rate of

the specific employees attending the meeting.

= Multiple sets of review documents for coordination, milestone reviews, inspection agency reviews, submission set reviews,
etc. At each review stage we will be providing a single electronic format set of our documents. We will not be providing
the final printing of the Bid Documents. Only internal in-house progress printing is included within our fees. Any
additional sets of documents will be considered to be a reimbursable expense.

Contact

William W, Brewster, RA Brewster|Architects, LLC

Principal 111 Oliver Road

email: wbrewster@brewsterarchitects.com  Lebanon, CT 06249
860.642.9907

Fee

The fee proposal is based on an estimate of the number of hours required to invest in the project, the
phases outlined above and comparable projects of size and scope and has been proposed as a Not-to-
Exceed, to be billed hourly against the rate schedule below.

Fee by Phase: Architect Engineer
Construction Documents Phase (CD) Architect $1,500

Construction Documents Phase (CD) Structural Engineer $1,000
Construction Administration Phase (CA) Architect $3,500

Construction Administration Phase (CA) Structural Engineer $3,000
Subtotals $5,000 $4,000
Total Not-to-exceed $9,000

BA_Colchester Bus Shelter Proposal_2021-0809R1.doc 2|3



Hourly Rates:

Title Standard Rate
Principal Engineer $ 150.00/hr,
Principal Architect $ 125.00/hr.
Project Architect $ 110.00/hr.
Draftsperson $ 95.00/hr.
Clerical $ 65.00/hr.

Reimbursable Expenses
Travel, Printing and plotting are a reimbursable expense to be billed per the rate schedule indicated
below.

Item Standard Rate
Expense of Postage + Express Delivery At Cost
Expense of Printing Costs Commercial Printing at Cost x1.15

Not Included. Can be provided as Additional Service, to be

Renderings, Models and Mock-ups Determined per Requirements

Again, thank you for the opportunity to provide this Proposal.

Please contact me if you have any questions, or wish to discuss the fee further. If you find this proposal
satisfactory, please return a signed copy to me at your earliest convenience.

Sincerely,
BREWSTER | ARCHITECTS

m W. Digitally signed by William Brewster
o Date: 2021.08.09.14:19:53 -04'00'

William W. Brewster, RA [LEED AP] Accepted by:
Principal Town of Colchester, Connecticut
cc: file

Date:

BA_Colchester Bus Shelter Proposal_2021-0809R1.doc 3|3



8107 ‘0 3snBny IN211PBUUOY) “181S9YD|0D) JO UMOL

_%mmmmmm s / SOy UoIeWIOJUl pue J3)jays sng pasodold
n. ' . ' uv%

1ol 55 |
€ |

. “: 5 |
08 !

15X HOIYH (-




s e
S~
gm_(Om_._IUmM.
E;mw_

8107 ‘€0 Isnbny IN21393UL0) “121S3U2j0D) JO UMOL
SOy UOIewW.Iojul pue 19)ays sng pasodold




Permitium — Vital Record On-line Request Form

No cost to us — They charge a $4.00 Conveyance Fee
No IT — A web based program that Permitium oversees.
o  We log on each day to receive orders and send to customer
They take all payment options
We determine fees if any for postage and shipping
ID Verification — We decide if we want them to verify. Can be separate option for vital
type.
o The fee to the customer is $.35 per vital
o The customer would be asked a series of questions to identify themselves
o We would require a copy of the ID
We would receive an ACH payment at the end of each month
Go live is 30 days after contract signing
Other towns are Newington and Derby — They are new to Connecticut




USER LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR AN ONLINE VITAL RECORDS REQUEST
APPLICATION

This user license agreement for an online vital records request application (the “User License
Agreement”) is made and entered into this __ day of , by and between the Colchester
Town Clerk (the “CLIENT”) and Permitium, LLC (*Permitium™), a corporation in good standing
authorized to do business in the State of North Carolina with its principal place of business at
10617 Southern Loop Blvd. Pineville, NC 28134,

For and in consideration of the mutual promises set forth in the User License Agreement, the
adequacy of which is hereby expressly acknowledged, the parties do mutually agree as follows:

1. Basic Obligations of Permitium. Permitium hereby agrees to provide the services
described in the attached Statement of Work (attached hereto as Exhibit 1) in accordance

with the terms and conditions of this User License Agreement as requested in writing by
the CLIENT.

2. Basic Obligations of the CLIENT. For any services requested in writing by the
CLIENT, the CLIENT agrees to compensate Permitium at the rates set forth in the
attached Statement of Work (Exhibit 1).

3. Term. Contract will be effective from , through . This
Agreement shall be automatically renewed for successive one (1) year terms unless either
Party provides the other Party with sixty (60) days prior written notice to the end of the
Initial Term or the Renewal Term.

4. Fee Collection and Payment. Permitium will collect online payments and agrees to
deliver the CLIENT a monthly statement by the 25" of each month which will itemized
for every transaction submitted the previous month along with a check or ACII for the
total amount collected less credit card fees listed on Exhibit 1.

5. Termination for Cause. At any time, the CLIENT may terminate this User License
Agreement immediately and without prior notice if Permitium is unable to meet goals
and timetables or if the CLIENT is dissatisfied with the quality of services provided.

6. Insurance. Permitium agrees to maintain a minimum of §6,000,000 in general liability
and other appropriate insurance, as well as Workers Compensation in the required
statutory amount, for all employees participating in the provision of services under this
User License Agreement. Certificates of such insurance shall be furnished by the
Permitium to the CLIENT and shall contain the provision that the CLIENT is given ten
(10) days’ written notice of any intent to cancel or terminate by either the Permitium or
the insuring company. Failure to furnish such insurance certificates or maintain such
insurance shall be deemed a material breach and grounds for immediate termination of
this User License Agreement. All Permitium liabilities as defined within this User
License Agreement will be capped at the greater of the compensation received by

1




10.

Permitium, or the $6,000,000 limit of general liability policy.

Taxes. Permitium shall pay all federal, state and FICA taxes for all of its employees
participating in the provision of services under this User License Agreement.

Monitoring and Auditing. Permitium shall cooperate with the CLIENT, or with any
other person or agency acting at the direction of the CLIENT, in their efforts to monitor,
audit, or investigate activities related to this User License Agreement. Permitium shall
provide any auditors retained by the CLIENT with access to any records and files related
to the provision of services under this User License Agreement upon reasonable notice.
The CLIENT agrees that its auditors will maintain the confidentiality of any trade secrets
of Permitium that may be accessed during an audit conducted under this User License
Agreement.

Confidentiality Information. Permitium agrees that all records, data, personnel records,
and/or other confidential information that come within Permitium’ possession in the
course of providing services to the CLIENT under this User License Agreement
(hereinafter, “Confidential Information™) shall be subject to the confidentiality and
disclosure provisions of all applicable federal and state statutes and regulations, as well as
any relevant policies of the CLIENT. All data and/or records provided by the CLIENT to
Permitium shall be presumed to be Confidential Information subject to the terms of this
section unless the CLIENT specifically indicates in writing that the requirements of this
section do not apply to a particular document or group of documents.

Permitium agrees to receive and hold Confidential Information, whether transmitted
orally, in writing or in any other form, and whether prepared by a party or its
Representatives, in strict confidence, and to use the Confidential Information solely for
the purpose of facilitating CLIENT s use of Permitium’ products and services. Except as
essential to Permitium’ obligations to CLIENT, Permitium shall not copy any of the
Confidential Information, nor shall Permitium remove any Confidential Information or
proprietary property or documents from CLIENT premises without written authorization
of the CLIENT. Permitium acknowledges its understanding that any unauthorized
disclosure of Confidential Information may result in penalties and other damages.

Security, Permitium represents and warrants that all documents and information
provided to Permitium by or behalf of the CLIENT, including but not limited to
Confidential Records, shall be stored and maintained by Permitium with the utmost care

and in conformity with standards generally accepted in Permitium’ industry for the types

of records being stored and maintained. Permitium further represents and warrants that
any online access to the CLIENT s records authorized persons pursuant to this User
License Agreement shall be safe, secure, and password-protected and provided with the
utmost care and in conformity with standards generally accepted in Permitium’ industry
for the types of records being stored and maintained, and that no person shall be
permitted to obtain unauthorized access to any of the CLIENT’s records. Without

2




limiting the foregoing, Permitium specifically warrants that:

10.1.  All servers, computers, and computer equipment used to provide services
pursuant to this User License Agreement shall be maintained in good working
order in compliance with generally accepted industry standards in light of the
confidential nature of the documents in question and shall be located in a safe,
controlled, and environmentally stable environment (including moisture and
temperature controls) and adequately protected against fires, hurricanes, flooding,
or similar occurrences;

10.2. Facilities where services are provided shall be secure and access shall be limited
to employees trained in security protocols with a legitimate business need to
access such facilities (with access removed immediately upon termination of
cmployment) and shall be protected from unauthorized access by commercially
reasonable security systems;

10.3.  All websites, FTPs, and any other online electronic system used to provide
services pursuant to this User License Agreement shall be protected from security
breaches by commercially reasonable firewalls and other intrusion detections
systems and antivirus software, which shall be kept updated at all times. Access
shall be limited to those agents and employees of Permitium assigned to the
project and any individuals identified in writing by the CLIENT or CLIENT’s
Designee as authorized to obtain access.

10.4.  Permitium have technical controls in place that ensure the security, availability
and confidentiality of CLIENT data.

10.5.  All information provided to Permitium pursuant to this User License Agreement
shall be encrypted while in transit over an open network.

11. Standard of Care. Notwithstanding anything in this User License Agreement to the
contrary, Permitium represents and warrants that the services provided by Permitium
shall be performed by qualified and skilled individuals in a timely and professional
manner with the utmost care and in conformity with standards generally accepted in
Permitium’ industry for the types of services and records governed by this User License
Agreement.

12. Indemnification. Permitium shall indemnify the CLIENT, its agents, and employees,
from and against all damages directly arising out of Permitium’s breach of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive the expiration or termination
of this Agreement and remain in full force and effect after such expiration or
termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing Permitium’s maximum indemnification will
be limited to the amount of insurance set forth within section 6.

CLIENT shall indemnify Permitium, its agents, and employees from and against all
damages directly arising out of CLIENT’s breach of this Agreement. This provision shall
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement and remain in full force and
effect after such expiration or termination.

13. Relationship of Parties. Permitium shall be an independent User License Agreement of

3




14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

the CLIENT, and nothing herein shall be construed as creating a partnership or joint
venture; nor shall any employee of Permitium be construed as an employee, agent or
principal of the CLIENT.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Permitium shall comply with all applicable laws
and regulations in providing services under this User License Agreement. Without
limiting the foregoing, Permitium specifically represents that it is aware of and in
compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act and that it will collect properly
verified [-9 forms from each employee providing services under this User License
Agreement. Permitium shall not employ any individuals to provide services to the
CLIENT who are not authorized by federal law to work in the United States.

Applicable CLIENT Policies. Permitium specifically acknowledges that it will comply
with all applicable CLIENT policies, all of which are publicly available on the CLIENT’s
website.

Assignment. Permitium agrees to notify the Client in the event the Contract is assigned
to a 3rd party within 5 business days of the assignment.

User License Agreement Modifications. This User License Agreement may be
amended only by written amendments duly executed by and between the CLIENT and
Permitium.

Connecticut Law. Connecticut law will govern the interpretation and construction of the
User License Agreement. Any litigation arising out of this User License Agreement shall
be filed, if at all, in a court or administrative tribunal located in the State of Connecticut.

Entire Agreement. This User License Agreement constitutes and expresses the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties concerning the subject matter of this
User License Agreement and supersedes all prior and contemporancous discussions,
promiises, representations, agreements and understandings relative to the subject matter of
this User License Agreement.

Severability. If any provision of this User License Agreement shall be declared invalid
or unenforceable, the remainder of the User License Agreement shall continue in full
force and effect.

Non-Solicitation. The Receiving Party agrees that, during the term of this Agreement,
and for a two-year period following the expiration of this Agreement, the Receiving Party
shall not solicit any employees of CLIENT to become employees of the Receiving Party
or its affiliated entities.

Notices. Any notice or other communication provided for herein as given to a party
hereto shall be in writing, shall refer to this Agreement by parties and date, and shall be
delivered by registered mail, return receipt required, postage prepaid to the person listed
below or his successor.

4




If to: Permitium
Permitium, LLC

10617 Southern Loop Blvd.

Pineville, NC 28134
Attn: Matt Solomon

If to CLIENT:
Colchester Town Clerk
Gayle Furman
127 Norwich Ave
Colchester, CT 06415

23, Authority of Signatories. The persons executing this User License Agreement hereby
represent and warrant that they have full authority and representative capacity to execute
the User License Agreement in the capacities indicated below and this User License
Agreement constitutes the binding obligation of the parties on whose behalf they signed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals the day
and year indicated above.

Colchester Town Clerk

Printed Name:
Signed:
ITS:

DATE:

PERMITIUM, LLC

Printed Name: Matt Solomon
Signed:
ITS: Managing Partner

DATE:




STATEMENT OF WORK - EXHIBIT 1

Implementation Plan
¢ Configure the initial instance of the new Permitium solution based on the Client’s process
and Permitium’s demonstration site

* Refine the new Permitium solution through an iterative process based on input received
from the Client’s staff during the testing phase

e Test the Permitium solution, revise as needed and prepare it for production

¢ Provide training for the Client’s staff as needed

= Provide ongoing support, hosting and management of the Permitium Solution

Implementation Team

Permitium | Account Manager Matt Solomon | 704-998-6555 | matt.solomon@permitium.com
855-712- -
m .
Support Team PERM supporti@permitium.com
Client Executive Sponsor
Project Manager
IT

Data and Security
All data collected in the Client’s instance of PermitDirector is the property of the Client.
Permitium does not own and will not distribute data without the written consent of the Client.
All passwords placed within the system are encrypted and not accessible by the Permitium staff.

Cost of Service
Cost for VitalDirector software, implementation services or support — Permitium will charge

$4.00 passed on as a convenience fee back to the applicant for each application submitted.

Credit card fees are passed through Lo the applicant by Permitium based on our contract rate
along with a $.35 vital verify fee, when applicable. The current rate is $.30 per transaction plus
2.9% of the total transaction. Cash transactions can be paid at no additional cost at counter.




WOD WNILIWY3d
WN1 W




Statistics

»>82% of Permitium Orders come via smart phones (2020 YTD avg)
> 84% of Permitium Orders come in between 5:00 PM — 11:30 PM
»>39% Year over Year Increase in Online Vital Orders via Permitium

Sources: www.permitum.com

Permitium
PERMITIUM.COM



Branded Oniline Forms

,ital
Records

Lt stounton 2,195,914

Select To Get Started:

. ?‘.ﬂwnam:ocﬁ RoD Vita: Records mmn:wwﬂw‘

Cours

Capeems, arl vica.

y Fosulton, 919,628

W2 IEOMIMerd YOu FOAUESE YOur vISY 18Coras Salne. 1t easy, st ana
sale. Oning Dayakn options wileae Dvsedver Caig, Mastedare, Anwncan

Fradnck Saith, Reqistrar has served as Mecklenburg Counly Regqister 0f Daads

since 2016.

Office Information

rode; Trackor

We recommang you refuest ydur vitdd reconds onking. It's easy, 1ast ang
sale. Onhae paymant oplans Include Discaver Card, HasterCard, Anencan

Express, and Visa,

H 75 Select Language ¥

Monday theough Thursday, 3
am'. 2006,

Please notethe following: .

andisome imited
= 'Foralistof Vatid il

. Within' Housion ity imits
ited suroundingareas. -

ko HERE

Register of Deeds: Fredrick Smith

rniage: Cartlcates, ‘marage lcenses; milary
mmissions. )

H Yacord hat occurred-within 10-days, plaasa
3 filing’ .uw.u_._.._.inn,ﬂauus.w.,m... m_mfumn“. note-the
sk-came, Eﬂ.w.m?m.... basis-

2 o
jcompletad ‘onfine, will be' processad on nommat

Jaring -normal business” hours (Monday-Friday

i, the: earliest that-a request can be processed

a

3 S Seleat Language ¥




St e —— e e ]

ﬁ @ w)m .% m @ m&m r m W m @ @ m\m m m m.m @ % @ s g Wake Courty ROD Vial RG0OTTS ROGUESIS  meve oo mons

5..>—Am_
COUNTY 1 -
\IJ‘(\
Online Birth Certificate Request

* Required Fields to Ensure Complete Data %&ﬁ,g@%ﬂsﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁaﬁisﬁ
+  Eliminate Handwriting T, T e
* Real-time Submission

» Customer Convenience

+ Dynamic Pricing Options

« Configurable Fields

+ Mirror the State Application

Permitium
PERMITIUM . COM




WOD WNILIWY3d
WNiuiiag

UOoNEIUWINJIOP JBYl0
pue qf ojoyd peojdn

el T GUdGius S51dx]

furtdiug piepues

- pasanjeg dnyaty

DIBDYILIAY HING JINOA SAIRDEI 01 SY11 NOA ]NOM AV

}senibay a1ed1us) ypIg suljuo

fruezies guaes o,

uone2uops sioyd Jnek yaTiie sscold

25U 549800 SJa01soRboY

1 g

dnyoid Aep swies
» Buiddiys piepueys
pue palipadxa apIAcld

3

e
)
g.\ 7}
g?1ﬁ
Lo
)



WOD WNILIWY3G
WNIWiag

o
-

DIIAIBG |BISO4
SeJelS PaluUN Yim uonesbeiul

LIDUN ASEIE LG FLEL
200 ZNE BT OLOALD BEEFE

UCHEDIIBA SdSN PoliR4 sseIppy




WO WOILIWYIG
WNIWiad

LY D s e B R .

(2] #32U0 800 - H38UD SE8IPPY

L 3 S | e IR g s -

- HI0U D AUOLY

Sjo0] Buljippow AJusplelA oyl Buisn
Apjoinb uoneounuapt Jueodde Mairey .

B gt -

PHIIIY NS5

TUEADN TR Pt e g, v

LONEPIITA NSS

uohedllisA 4l o
SoUBINSSE pue ADRINDDE 10} Saseqelep
|etopo) ¥ a1e1s 1sulebe pazAjeue

pue paiedwod sI elep owap-oig -

- Y3 RASIVIRONT T TR a
A
A SO BINS SO NES

(AR EreAtn s T Eee

o AT ADD

4T STaIRDY
ANCH B
. . B WA HES
“ AHUD HES

9305
SUORZAND ¢D5awg Ly o nrrsag Sunory

AMOBINECTI HBMUAN JORIC MLBAIRIA

MOUIYLITD Usauwny MpiQ

RS MW oonBop SRI0CIM ITIA Q0N WEsod




WOD WNILIWY3d
wnNRIwlsdg

SpLOToY
(3

g —

SSlewno]

TN I LAY IR i AT e DR At AT A et ar mnd fnan

slayaes ssauboly 12pig

L
bRE LD NSRS I Pl DN) FERINT S0 NG 0] AL I0LINN ML SEN LRI LBt afidn ook o) P TIAs P aERLe 2 Pl g MDA

cwoneoddy anoa o1 newsooA v UIenY

SNIEIS JOPJO MBINDY
SJapI0 0] sabessow a2I0A yoeny -
uoneuawNOo peoldn .

UQIBLIGM| BP0

]
ride dupuo 0ok ps w.m01) shop gf passacesd sq i Mpi0. oK) spou ety

, PR . e EETIDR 4
e iou any AR Jf SO0 I 303 PUGHIERE 0L 0 909 °2 e | | m,.rhmufenr\.ﬂ i1 mgmw mm{.ﬁqm
il GREM 2 RERE. medow ;

o e i o 0 g mwﬂm®@®m mmw\mmwﬁmwﬂ,m__ ...mmﬁﬁqmg

SPELIRG sk gisanbay SPI03SY [BlA JON Uiisiod ]
II.III|II|I|




\I@U‘l:hWNH

Execute Agreement

Initial Kick off Cali (30 min call within 7 days of Executed Agreement)
Site Buildout (7 days)

Site Review/Initial Training Call (45-minute cali)

2nd ._.Wmmsmsm Call (30-90 minutes depending on # of users)

Initial Go Live Follow up (30 min call)

Post Go Live Follow up(s) (15 min calls)



NO VD WN R

Steps to Go Live in 30 Days

Execute Agreement

Initial Kick off Cali (30 min call within 7 days of Executed Agreement)
Site Buildout (7 days)

Site Review/Initial Training Call (45-minute call)

2nd ._.-.mm_,::m Call (30-90 minutes depending on # of users)

Initial Go Live Foliow up (30 min call)

Post Go Live Follow _.__OA& (15 min calls)

™, HE _.h.
Fermitium
PERMITIUM . COM



To all Town erks - Issuance of Absentee Ballot Applications

Havrilla, llona <ilona.Havrilia@ct.gov>

To alt Town Clerks:

We have recently received questions from a few Town Clerks regarding their ability to send out unsolicited
absentee baliot appfications to all voters in their town. Although our office will not be mailing applications to ail
active registered voters in the state, it would be allowable for each town clerk to mail out applications to all active
voters within their town. If you decide to mail applications to all active voters in your town, you wiil need to keep
a list of those active voters that have received an application. As you may be aware, recent legisiation, PA 21-2,
makes COVID19 a valid excuse 1o vote by absentee bailot for both the primary and election in 2021.

Given our recent experience with conducting the task of mailing out appiications to all active voters in the state in
2020, we would like to pass along a few helpful guidelines should you decide to conduct this mailing.

1. Be sure you mail to all active voters in your town;

2. Be sure that you use the most up to date registry list to ensure you have captured any changes made to the
voter list because of the annual canvass:

3, Be sure that you capture any mailing address within a voter record;

4. Be sure tha name is captured accurately, especially names that are hyphenated or have mixed
capitalization (McMahon}; and

5. Be sure you let 2ach voter know why they are raceiving the application to avoid confusion.

The information regarding any applications that may be returned as undeliverable can be helpful in keeping
accurate voter rolls in your town and should be used in the next annual canvass by your Registrars of Voters.

Thank you for your efforts and dedication to the electoral process in the State of Connecticut.

Theodore E Bromley

Director of Elections

Office of the Secretary of the State
State of Connecticut

165 Capitol Avenue

Hartford, CT 06106

860-509-61C0

PRIVILEGE AND CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

The information in this electronic mail is intended for the addressed recipient(s) only. This email may
contain privileged and confidential material from the Office of the Secretary of the State. If yvou are not
the intended recipient, please be advised that any disclosure, copying, distribution or use of the contents
of this information may be prohibited. If you have received this email in error, piease notify the sender
immediately by replying to this email or by telephone. Thank you.



COST RELATED TO SENDING ABSENTEE BALLOTS TO ALL VOTERS
(These are approximate numbers}

Approximate Number of active voters — 11,100

Postage at .51 = $5,661.00
Address labels = $222.00
Envelopes = $333.00
Paper for Applications = $222.00
Paper for enclosed letter of explanation = 222.00
Staff Hours
e Printing of applications = 1
e Printing of labels {Downloading a report and typing them from there or finding a way to
put them into excel or something to print them?} = 47
e Stuffing envelopes and putting on labels @ 2 people = 25
s Stamping the envelopes =1
o Total Hours = 56 @approximately $3,000

Approximate total = $9,660

If we went with a mailing house it would be approximately $12,000



Q-282943-44322.553NH
Issued: 05/06/2021

Axon Enterprise i » Quote Expiration: 05/06/2021
5 A

17800 N 85th St Account Number: 204340
Scottsdale, Arizona 85255 Payment Terms: Net 30
United States Delivery Method: Fedex - Ground

Phone: (800) 978-2737

SALES REPRESENTATIVE

Tierra Moran
SHIP TO BILLTO Phone:
Colchester Police Dept. - CT Email: tmoran@axon.com
Colchester Police Dept. - CT 127 NORWICH AVE. Fax.
127 NORWICH AVE. COLCHESTER, CT 06415 PRIMARY CONTACT
COLCHESTER, CT 06415 us
us Phone:
Email:
Year 1: AB3
2 Term : List Unit iepien
Item Description (Months) Quantity Tt Net Unit Price Total (USD)
Axon Plans & Packages
73449 RESPOND DEVICE LICENSE 60 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
73746 PROFESSIONAL EVIDENCE.COM LICENSE 60 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
EVIDENCE.COM UNLIMITED AXON DEVICE
73686 STORAGE 60 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
73683 10 GB EVIDENCE.COM A-LA-CART STORAGE 60 100 0.00 0.00 0.00
20248 TASER 7 EVIDENCE.COM ACCESS LICENSE 60 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
73449 RESPOND DEVICE LICENSE 60 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
73638 STANDARDS ACCESS LICENSE 60 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
TASER 7 DUTY CARTRIDGE REPLACEMENT
20246 ACCESS LICENSE 60 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hardware
73202 AXON BQDY 3 -NA10 1 699.00 485.39 485.39
MAGNET MOUNT, FLEXIBLE REINFORCED,
71026 RAPIDLOCK 1 0.00 0.00 0.00
11534 USB-C to USB-A CABLE FOR AB3 OR FLEX 2 1 0.00 0.00 0.00
TASER 7 HOLSTER - SAFARILAND, RH+CART
20160 CARRIER 11 0.00 0.00 0.00
75015 SIGNAL SIDEARM KIT 100 0.00 0.00 0.00
TASER 7 HANDLE, YLW, HIGH VISIBILITY
20008 (GREEN LASER), CLASS 3R 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
20040 TASER 7 HANDLE WARRANTY, 4-YEAR 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
73202 AXON BODY 3 - NA10 10 699.00 485.39 4,853.90

Q-282943-44322.553NH

1 Protect Life.




Year 1: AB3 (Continued)

Item

Description

‘Hardware (Continued)

22175

22176

22179

22181

71044

70033
74210

22175

22176

22177

22178
20018

20041

20042

70033
74200
80090
11534
71026

Other
73665
73946
73958

TASER 7 LIVE CARTRIDGE, STANDOFF (3.5
DEGREE) NS

TASER 7 LIVE CARTRIDGE, CLOSE
QUARTERS (12-DEGREE) NS

TASER 7 INERT CARTRIDGE, STANDOFF
(3.5-DEGREE) NS

TASER 7 INERT CARTRIDGE, CLOSE
QUARTERS (12-DEGREE) NS

BATTERY, SIGNAL SIDEARM, CR2430
SINGLE PACK

WALL MOUNT BRACKET, ASSY,
EVIDENCE.COM DOCK

AXON BODY 3 - 8 BAY DOCK

TASER 7 LIVE CARTRIDGE, STANDOFF (3.5-
DEGREE) NS

TASER 7 LIVE CARTRIDGE, CLOSE
QUARTERS (12-DEGREE) NS

TASER 7 HOOK-AND-LOOP TRN (HALT)
CARTRIDGE, STANDOFF NS

TASER 7 HOOK-AND-LOOP TRN (HALT)
CARTRIDGE, CLOSE QUART NS

TASER 7 BATTERY PACK, TACTICAL

TASER 7 BATTERY PACK WARRANTY, 4-
YEAR

TASER 7 DOCK & CORE WARRANTY, 4-
YEAR

WALL MOUNT BRACKET, ASSY,
EVIDENCE.COM DOCK

TASER 7 6-BAY DOCK AND CORE

TARGET FRAME, PROFESSIONAL, 27.5 IN. X
75IN., TASER 7

USB-C to USB-A CABLE FOR AB3 OR FLEX 2

MAGNET MOUNT, FLEXIBLE REINFORCED,
RAPIDLOCK

RESPOND DEVICE PAYMENT
OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 7 BUNDLE HEADER
OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 7 PAYMENT

Term
(Months)

12
60
12

Quantity

30

30

10

10

200

20

20

20

20
12

12

10

11

10
10
10

Q-282943-44322.553NH

2

List Unit
Price

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

43.90
1,495.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

60.00
0.00
1,908.00

Net Unit Price

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

30.48
1,038.13

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

41.66
0.00
1,324.92

Total (USD)

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

60.96
2,076.26

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

416.60
0.00
13,249.20

Protect Life.




Year 1: AB3 (Continued)

Term List Unit
e ¥ Pri
Item Description (Months) Quantity Price Net Unit Price Total (USD) |
Other (Continued)
Not Eligible
TASER 7 .
INSTRUCTO \N/gtchl;laIE:: TASER 7 INSTRUCTOR COURSE 4 0.00 0.00 0.00
R COURSE
VOUCHER
Not Eligible

TASER 7

MASTER Not Eligible TASER 7 MASTER INSTRUCTOR
INSTRUCTO SCHOOL VOUCHER 1 2oy L 0.00
R SCHOOL

VOoucC

Not Eligible - .

Halt Suit Not Eligible Halt Suit 1 0.00 0.00 0.00
73827 AB3 CAMERA TAP WARRANTY 60 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
73828  AB3 8 BAY DOCK TAP WARRANTY 60 2 0.00 0.00 0.00

TASER 7 TARGET, CONDUCTIVE,
8008y PROFESSIONAL (RUGGEDIZED) 1 and 0.00 L
NORTH AMER POWER CORD FOR AB3 8-
71019 gav. AB2 1-BAY / 6-BAY DOCK 2 G50 _ 0.00
Services
80146 VIRTUAL BODYCAM STARTER 1 1,000.00 694.40 694.40
Subtotal 21,836.71
Estimated
Shipping 0.00
Estimated Tax 0.00
Total 21,836.71

Year 1: Fleet 3

st Term ; List Unit G
Item Description (Months) Quantity Price Net Unit Price Total (USD)
Axon Plans & Packages
FLEET, EVIDENCE LICENSE, 1 CAMERA
80410 STORAGE, ACCESS 60 20 0.00 0.00 0.00
80400 FLEET, VEHICLE LICENSE, ACCESS 60 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
FLEET 3, ALPR LICENSE, 1 CAMERA,
80401 ACCESS 60 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
RESPOND DEVICE LICENSE - FLEET 3 -
80402 ACCESS 60 10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Q-282943-44322.563NH

3 Protect Life.




Year 1: Fleet 3 (Continued)

Item

| Hérdware
72036

11634

71200

74110
Other

80425

80459

No Custom
Triggers

Services

74063

Year 2

Item
Hardware

22176

22175

Other
73665
73958

80459

Description

FLEET 3 STANDARD 2 CAMERA KIT

CRADLEPOINT IBR900-1200M-NPS+5 YEAR
NETCLOUD ESSENT (PRIME)

FLEET ROUTER ANTENNA, COMPACT 5-IN-
1, BLACK

CABLE, CAT6 ETHERNET 25 FT, FLEET

TAP, FLEET 3, 2 CAMERA KIT, 1 REFRESH
ACCESS

FLEET 3 ADVANCED BUNDLE WITH TAP
PAYMENT

No Custom Triggers (Declined)

STANDARD FLEET INSTALLATION (PER
VEHICLE}

Description

TASER 7 LIVE CARTRIDGE, CLOSE
QUARTERS (12-DEGREE) NS

TASER 7 LIVE CARTRIDGE, STANDOFF (3.5-
DEGREE) NS

RESPOND DEVICE PAYMENT
OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 7 PAYMENT

FLEET 3 ADVANCED BUNDLE WITH TAP
PAYMENT

Term i
(Months) Quantity
10
10
10
10
10
12 10
10
10
Term 4
(Months) Quantity
20
20
12 10
12 10
12 10

Q-282943-44322.553NH

4

List Unit ot Unit Price
Price
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
2,496.00 2,187.74
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
Subtotal
Estimated Tax
Total
ListUnit ot unit Price
Price
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
60.00 58.74
1,908.00 1,867.93
2,496.00 2,443.58
Subtotal
Estimated Tax
Total

Total (USD)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
21,877.40

0.00

0.00

21,877.40
0.00
21,877.40

Total (USD)

0.00

0.00

587.40
18,679.30

24,435.80

43,702.50
0.00
43,702.50

Protect Life.




Year 3

Item
Hardware

22178
22177
22176

22175

Other
73665
73958
73309
73689

80459

Year 4

Item
Hardware

22176

22175

Other
73665
73958

80459

Description

TASER 7 HOOK-AND-LOOP TRN (HALT)
CARTRIDGE, CLOSE QUART NS

TASER 7 HOOK-AND-LOOP TRN (HALT)
CARTRIDGE, STANDOFF NS

TASER 7 LIVE CARTRIDGE, CLOSE
QUARTERS (12-DEGREE) NS

TASER 7 LIVE CARTRIDGE, STANDOFF (3.5-
DEGREE) NS

RESPOND DEVICE PAYMENT
OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 7 PAYMENT
AXON CAMERA REFRESH ONE
MULTI-BAY BWC DOCK 1ST REFRESH

FLEET 3 ADVANCED BUNDLE WITH TAP
PAYMENT

Description

TASER 7 LIVE CARTRIDGE, CLOSE
QUARTERS (12-DEGREE) NS

TASER 7 LIVE CARTRIDGE, STANDOFF (3.5-
DEGREE) NS

RESPOND DEVICE PAYMENT
OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 7 PAYMENT

FLEET 3 ADVANCED BUNDLE WITH TAP
PAYMENT

Term
(Months)

12
12

12

Term
(Months)

12
12

12

Quantity

20
20
20

20

10
10
10

10

Quantity

20

20

10
10

10

Q-282943-44322.553NH

5

List'UnIt Net Unit Price
Price

0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
60.00 58.74
1,908.00 1,867.93
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
2,496.00 2,443.58
Subtotal
Estimated Tax
Total
List.Umt Net Unit Price
Price
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
60.00 58.74
1,908.00 1,867.93
2,496.00 2,443 58
Subtotal
Estimated Tax
Total

Total (USD)

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

587.40
18,679.30
0.00

0.00

24,435.80

43,702.50
0.00
43,702.50

Total (USD)

0.00

0.00

587.40
18,679.30

24,435.80

43,702.50
0.00
43,702.50

Protect Life.




Year 5

Item
Hardware

22176

22175

Other
73665
73958
73310
73688

80459

73335

Description

TASER 7 LIVE CARTRIDGE, CLOSE
QUARTERS (12-DEGREE) NS

TASER 7 LIVE CARTRIDGE, STANDOFF (3.5-
DEGREE) NS

RESPOND DEVICE PAYMENT

OFFICER SAFETY PLAN 7 PAYMENT
AXON CAMERA REFRESH TWO
MULTI-BAY BWC DOCK 2ND REFRESH
FLEET 3 ADVANCED BUNDLE WITH TAP
PAYMENT

FLEET CAMERA REFRESH (ONE FRONT
AND ONE REAR)

Term
(Months)

12
12

12

Quantity

20

20

10
10
10

10

10

Q-282943-44322.553NH

6

List Unit

g Net Unit Price
Price
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
60.00 58.74
1,908.00 1,867.93
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
2,496.00 2,443.58
0.00 0.00
Subtotal
Estimated Tax
Total
Grand Total

Total (USD)

0.00

0.00

587.40
18,679.30
0.00

0.00

24,435.80

0.00

43,702.50
0.00
43,702.50

218,524.11

Protect Life.




A AXON

Discounts usp)

Quote Expiration: 05/06/2021

List Amount 234,966.80
Discounts 16,442.69
Total 218,524.11

*Total excludes applicable taxes

Summary of Payments

Payment Amount (USD)

Year 1: AB3 21,836.71
Year 1: Fleet 3 21,877.40
Year 2 43,702.50
Year 3 43,702.50
Year 4 43,702.50
Year 5 43,702.50
Grand Total 218,524.11

Q-282943-44322.553NH
7

Protect Life.



STATEMENT OF WORK & CONFIGURATION DOCUMENT

Axon Fleet In-Car Recording Platform

This document details a proposed system design

Agency Created For: Colchester Police Dept. - CT

Quote: Q-282943-44322.553NH

Sold By: Tierra Moran
Designed By: Ashlyn Frahm
Installed By: Axon
Target Install Date:

V-3.26.18




VEHICLE OVERVIEW

SITENAME

Headquarters

CUSTOMER NAME

Colchester Police Dept. - CT

Total Configured Vehicles
w10

Video Capture Sources

Total Vehicles with this Configuration ZS
£

v |

Axon Camera

+ 20 Total Cameras Deployed
£
LY Axon Signal Unit(s) Per Vehicle ¢ ;3
Mobile Data Terminal Per Vehicle
Signal Unit
sl Located In Each Vehicle
: : B
Mobile Router Per Vehicle —

LI |

Offload Mechanism

« 4G LTE Cellular

Evidence Management System

» Evidence.com

IBR900-1200M-B

In-Car Router

Battery Box

SYSTEM CONFIGURATION DETAILS

The following sections detail the configuration of the Axon Fleet In-Car System

Vehicle Hardware

Vehicle Hardware

2 Axon Fleet Cameras will be installed in each vehicle

2 Axon Fleet Battery Boxes will be installed in each vehicle
1 Axon Signal Units will be installed in each vehicle

1 IBR200-1200M-B router will be installed in each vehicle

Axon Battery Boxes

The battery box provides power to its connected camera for up to 4 hours allowing for video offload while
the vehicle ignition state is OFF and the MDT is connected and available.

Signal Activation Methods

When triggered, the Axon Signal Vehicle (ASV) device will activate the recording mechanism for all
configured Axon cameras within 30 feet of the vehicle.

Mobile Data Terminal

Each vehicle will be equipped with a Mobile Data Terminal provided by the customer.

Mobile Data Terminal
Requirements

Operating System: Windows 7 or Windows 10 - x32 or x64 with the most current service packs and
updates

Hard Drive: Must have 25GB+ of free disk space

RAM/Memory: Windows 7 - 4GB or greater | Windows 10 - 8GB or greater

Ethernet Port: The system requires the MDT to have one dedicated and available Ethernet port reserved
for an Ethernet cable from router. The Ethernet port can be located on an electronic and stationary mobile
docking station. If a docking station is used, it is the preferred location for the Ethernet port.

Wi-Fi Card: The system requires an 802.11n compatible Wi-Fi card using 5Ghz band.

USB Ports: If the computer is assigned to the officer and does not remain with the vehicle, then the
number dongles ordered should equal the number of officers or the number of computers assigned. At least
one dedicated and available USB 2.0 port for the Fleet USB dongle USB Port on MDT or Dock.




Additional
Considerations

If the customer has a MiFi hotspot, embedded cellular, or USB 4G, then the customer must purchase a
Cradlepoint router with an external antenna and Cradlecare.

For agencies that use NetMotion Mobility, Axon traffic must be passed through; such that it does not
use the Mability VPN tunnel. Customer must provide IT and / or Admin resources at time of installation
to ensure data routing if functional for Axon Fleet operation.

In the event an Agency is unable to support the IT requirements associated with the installation, Axon
reserves the right to charge the Agency for additional time associated with on-site work completed by
an Axon Employee.

Hardware Provisioning

Axon will provide the following router for all vehicles: IBRO00-1200M-B

The customer will provide a MDT for each vehicle

In-Car Network Considerations

Network Requirements

IBRI00-1200M-B will create a dedicated 5Ghz WiFi network within each vehicle. This network will join
the Axon Fleet cameras and Mobile Data Terminal together.

Network Addressing

IP Addressing Total IPs Required
Axon Fleet Cameras 20
Mobile Data Terminal 10 40
IBR900-1200M-B 10

Hardware Provisioning

Customer to provide all IP addressing and applicable network information

Network Consideration Agreement

Network Consideration
Agreement

Customer acknowledges the minimum requirements for the network to support this Statement of Work.

All Axon employees performing services under this SOW are CJIS certified.

If the network provided by Customer does not meet the minimum requirements, or in the event of a
requested change in scope of the project, a Change Order will be required and additional fees may
apply. Additional fees would also apply if Axon is required to extend the installation time for reasons
caused by the customer or the customer network accessibility.




Professional Services & Training

Project Management

Axon will assign a Project Manager that will provide the expertise to execute a successful Fleet
camera deployment and implementation. The Project Manager will have knowledge and experience
with all phases of the project management lifecycle and with all application modules being
implemented. He/she will work closely with the customer's project manager and project team members
and will be responsible for completing the tasks required to meet all contract deliverables.

Vehicle Installation

Axon will be performing the installation of all Axon Fleet vehicle hardware. Installation services
purchased from Axon include a “clip” and removal of existing in-car system hardware. This does not
include “full removal” of existing wiring. A “full removal” of all existing hardware and wiring is subject to
additional fees. Axon provides basic Fleet operation overview to the customer lead and/or Admin at
the time of install.

Clip vs Rip installation removal:

o It is necessary to differentiate between the type of equipment removal to be provided by
Axon. Standard Fleet Installation includes hardware removal in a fashion considered
“Clip" which means Axon cuts the wires from the old system without removing multiple
panels, removing all wiring and parts from the old system. In the case Axon removes
the hardware Axon is not responsible for the surplus of hardware or any devices that
may have been physically integrated with the removed system. In some situations,
radar systems are integrated with the in-car video system and have a cable that
connects to the system, if Axon removes the old in car system then Axon is not
responsible for the radar system as part of the removal.

o A “Rip" removal should be contracted through ProlLoegic directly. The Rip would be
similar to a complete and full removal, which is more common when they retire a
vehicle from service.

Custom Trigger
Installation

Axon Signal Units have multiple trigger configuration options. Any trigger configurations that include a
door or magnetic door switch are considered “custom” and may be subject to additional fees.

An Axon representative has discussed with the Agency the standard triggers of the Fleet System,
Those standard triggers include light-bar activation, speed, crash and gun-locks. The light-bar must
have a controller to allow Axon to interface for the desired position, gun-locks must be installed with
existing hardware in the vehicle. Doors are considered “CUSTOM”" since they required additional
hardware and time for installation, typically requiring the door may need to be taken apart for the
installation.

Training

End-user go-live training provides individual device set up and configuration assistance, training on
device use, Evidence.com and AXON View XL.
End-user go-live training and support is not included in the installation fee scope.




4G / Cellular Offload Considerations

Network Considerations

The IBR900-1200M-B will be the connection which allows 4G upload of recorded video

The customer will ensure that their cellular contract does not allow for data throttling, or service denial, once
a set data threshold is met. Throttling or denial of service will negatively affect Fleet upload capabilities.

The MDT's 4G connection will facilitate the upload of recorded video content.

Hardware Provisioning

The customer will provide all 4G sim cards as required by their mobile provider.




Tax is subject to change at order processing with valid exemption.

Axon’s Sales Terms and Conditions

This Quote is limited to and conditional upen your acceptance of the provisions set forth herein and Axon’'s Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
(posted at www.axon.com/legal/sales-terms-and-conditions) and the Axon Customer Experience Improvement Program Appendix, which includes
the sharing of de-identified segments of Agency Content with Axon to develop new products and improve your product experience (posted at
www.axon.com/legal/sales-terms-and-conditions), as well as the attached Statement of Work (SOW) for Axon Fleet and/or Axon Interview Room
purchase, if applicable. The Axon Customer Experience Improvement Program Appendix ONLY applies to Customers in the USA. In the event
you and Axon have entered into a prior agreement to govern all future purchases, that agreement shall govern to the extent it contemplates the
products and services being purchased and does not conflict with the Axon Customer Experience Improvement Program Appendix. Any purchase order
issued in response to this Quote is subject solely to the above referenced terms and conditions. By signing below, you represent that you are lawfully
able to enter into contracts. If you are signing on behalf of an entity (including but not limited to the company, municipality, or government agency for
whom you work), you represent to Axon that you have legal authority to bind that entity. If you do not have this authority, please do not sign this Quote.

Signature: Date:
Name (Print): Title:
PO# (Or write
N/A):
Please sign and email to Tierra Moran at tmoran@axon.com or fax to
Thank you for being a valued Axon customer. For your convenience on your next order, please check out our online store buy.axon.com
The trademarks referenced above are the property of their respective owners.
***Axon Internal Use Only*™*
SFDC Contract#:
Order Type:
RMA#:
Address Used:
Review 1 Review 2 SO#
Comments:

Q-282943-44322.553NH

13 Protect Life.




‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between
A Axon and Agency (Online)

This Master Services and Purchasing Agreement (“Agreement") is between Axon Enterprise, Inc., a Delaware
corporation ("Axon”), and the agency on the Quote ("Agency”). This Agreement is effective as of the later of the
(a) last signature date on this Agreement or (b} signature date on the Quote {“Effective Date"). Axon and Agency
are each a “Party” and collectively “Parties”. This Agreement governs Agency’s purchase and use of the Axon
Devices and Services detailed in the Quote Appendix (“Quote”). It is the intent of the Parties that this Agreement
act as a master agreement governing all subsequent purchases by Agency for the same Axon products and services
in the Quote, and all such subsequent quotes accepted by Agency shall be also incorporated into this Agreement
by reference as a Quote. The Parties therefore agree as follows:

1

Definitions.

“Axon Cloud Services” means Axen's web services for Axon Evidence, Axan Records, Axon Dispatch,
and interactions between Evidence.com and Axon Devices or Axon client software. Axon Cloud Service
excludes third-party applications, hardware warranties, and my.evidence.com.

“Axon Device" means all hardware provided by Axon under this Agreement.

“Quote” means an offer to sell and is only valid for devices and services on the quote at the specified prices.
Any terms within Agency's purchase order in response to a Quote will be void. Orders are subject to prior
credit approval. Changes in the deployment estimated ship date may change charges in the Quote.
Shipping dates are estimates only. Axon is not responsible for typographical errors in any offer by Axon,
and Axon reserves the right to cancel any orders resulting from such errors.

“S8ervices” means all services provided by Axon under this Agreement, including software, Axon Cloud
Services, and professional services,

Term. This Agreement begins on the Effective Date and continues until all subscriptions hereunder have
expired or have been terminated {*Term").

All subscriptions including Axon Evidence, Axon Fleet, Officer Safety Plans, Technology Assurance Plans,
and TASER 7 plans begin after shipment of the applicable Axon Device. If Axon ships the Axon Device in
the first half of the month, the start date is the 1st of the following month, If Axon ships the Axon Device in
the second half of the month, the start date is the 15th of the following month. Far purchases solely of Axon
Evidence subscriptions, the start date is the Effective Date. Each subscription term ends upon completion
of the subscription stated in the Quote {"Subscription Term").

Upon completion of the Subscription Term, the Subscription Term will automatically renew for an additional
5 years ("Renewal Term”). For purchase of TASER 7 as a standalone, Axon may increase pricing to its
then-current list pricing for any Renewal Term. For all other purchases, Axon may increase pricing on all
line items in the Quote up to 3% at the beginning of each year of the Renewal Term. New devices and
services may require additicnal terms. Axon will not authorize services until Axon receives a signed Quote
or accepts a purchase order, whichever is first.

Payment. Axon invoices upon shipment. Payment is due net 30 days from the invoice date. Payment
obligations are non-cancelable. Agency will pay inveoices without setoff, deduction, or withholding. If Axon
sends a past due account to collections, Agency is responsible for collection and attorneys’ fees.

Taxes. Agency is responsible for sales and other taxes associated with the order unless Agency provides
Axon a valid tax exemption certificate.

Shipping. Axon may make partial shipments and ship Axon Devices from multiple locations. All shipments
are FOB shipping point via common carrier. Title and risk of loss pass to Agency upon Axon's delivery to
the common carrier. Agency is responsible for any shipping charges in the Quote.

Returns. All sales are final. Axon does not allow refunds or exchanges, except warranty returns or as
provided by state or federal law.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Cnline)

Department: Legal
Version: 1.0

Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 1 0f 47



1\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between
ZA Axon and Agency (Online)

7 Warranty.

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Hardware Limited Warranty. Axon warrants that Axon-manufactured Devices are free from
defects in workmanship and materials for 1 year from the date of Agency's receipt, except Signal
Sidearm, which Axon warrants for 30 months from the date of Agency’s receipt. Axon warrants its
Axon-manufactured accessories for 90-days from the date of Agency's receipt. Used conducted
energy weapon (“CEW") cartridges are deemed to have operated properly. Extended warranties
run from the expiration of the 1-year hardware warranty through the extended warranty term. Non-
Axon manufactured Devices are not covered by Axon's warranty. Agency should contact the
manufacturer for support of non-Axon manufactured Devices.

Claims. If Axon receives a valid warranty claim for an Axon manufactured Device during the
warranty term, Axon’s sole responsibility is to repair or replace the Device with the same or like
Device, at Axon’s option. A replacement Axon Device will be new or like new. Axon will warrant the
replacement Axon Device for the longer of (a) the remaining warranty of the original Axon Device
or {b) 90-days from the date of repair or replacement.

If Agency exchanges a device or part, the replacement item becomes Agency's property, and the
replaced item becomes Axon's property. Before delivering a Axon Device for service, Agency must
upload Axon Device data to Axon Evidence or download it and retain a copy. Axon is not
responsible for any loss of software, data, or other information contained in storage media or any
part of the Axon Device sent to Axon for service.

Spare Axon Devices. For qualified purchases, Axon may provide Agency a predetermined number
of spare Axon Devices as detailed in the Quote (“Spare Axon Devices”). Spare Axon Devices are
intended to replace broken or non-functioning units while Agency submits the broken or non-
functioning units, through Axon’s warranty return process. Axon will repair or replace the unit with
a replacement Axon Device. Title and risk of loss for all Spare Axon Devices shall pass to Agency
in accordance with shipping terms under Section 5. Axon assumes no liability or obligation in the
event Agency does not utilize Spare Axon Devices for the intended purpose.

Limitations. Axon’s warranty excludes damage related to: (a) failure to follow Axon Device use
instructions; (b} Axon Devices used with equipment not manufactured or recommended by Axon;
(c) abuse, misuse, or intentional damage to Axon Device; (d) force majeure; (e) Axon Devices
repaired or modified by persons other than Axon without Axon’s written permission; or (f) Axon
Devices with a defaced or removed serial number.

7.4.1 To the extent permitted by law, the above warranties and remedies are exclusive.
Axon disclaims all other warranties, remedies, and conditions, whether oral, written,
statutory, or implied. If statutory or implied warranties cannot be lawfully disclaimed,
then such warranties are limited to the duration of the warranty described above and
by the provisions in this Agreement.

7.4.2 Axon’s cumulative liability to any Party for any loss or damage resulting from any
claim, demand, or action arising out of or relating to any Axon Device or Service will
not exceed the purchase price paid to Axon for the Axon Device, or if for Services,
the amount paid for such Services over the 12 months preceding the claim. Neither
Party will be liable for direct, special, indirect, incidental, punitive or consequential
damages, however caused, whether for breach of warranty or contract, negligence,
strict liability, tort or any other legal theory.

Statement of Work. Certain Axon Devices and Services, including Axon Interview Room, Axon Channel

Services, and Axon Fleet, may require a Statement of Work that details Axon's Service deliverables
("SOW"). In the event Axon provides an SOW to Agency, Axon is only responsible to perform Services
described in the SOW. Additional services are out of scope. The Parties must document scope changes in
a written and signed change order. Changes may require an equitable adjustment in fees or schedule. The
SOW is incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

Axon Device Warnings. See www.axon.com/legal for the most current Axon Device warnings.

Title

: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)

Department: Legal

Version
Release Date

0 1.0
1 3/31/2021 Page 2 of 47



l\ Z 5. XO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between
~a Axon and Agency (Online)

10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Design Changes. Axon may make design changes to any Axon Device or Service without notifying Agency
or making the same change to Axon Devices and Services previously purchased by Agency.

Bundled Offerings. Some offerings in bundled offerings may not be generally available at the time of
Agency's purchase. Axon will not provide a refund, credit, or additional discount beyond what is in the
Quote due to a delay of availability or Agency's election not to utilize any portion of an Axon bundle.

Insurance. Axon will maintain General Liability, Workers’ Compensation, and Automobile Liability
insurance. Upon request, Axon will supply certificates of insurance.

Indemnification. Axon will indemnify Agency’s officers, directors, and employees (“Agency Indemnitees™)
against all claims, demands, losses, and reasonable expenses arising out of a third-party claim against an
Agency Indemnitee resulting from any negligent act, error or omission, or willful misconduct by Axon under
this Agreement, except to the extent of Agency's negligence or willful misconduct, or claims under workers
compensation.

IP Rights. Axon owns and reserves all right, title, and interest in Axon devices and services and suggestions
to Axon, including all related intellectual property rights. Agency will not cause any Axon proprietary rights
to be violated.

IP_Indemnification. Axon will indemnify Agency Indemnitees against all claims, losses, and reasonable
expenses from any third-party claim alleging that the use of Axon Devices or Services infringes or
misappropriates the third-party's intellectual property rights. Agency must promptly provide Axon with
written notice of such claim, tender to Axon the defense or settlement of such claim at Axon's expense and
coaperate fully with Axon in the defense or settiement of such claim. Axon's IP indemnification obligations
do not apply to claims based on (a) modification of Axon Devices or Services by Agency or a third-party not
approved by Axon; (b) use of Axon Devices and Services in combination with hardware or services not
approved by Axon; (c) use of Axon Devices and Services other than as permitted in this Agreement; or (d)
use of Axon software that is not the most current release provided by Axon.

Agency Responsibilities. Agency is responsible for (a) Agency's use of Axon Devices; (b} breach of this
Agreement or violation of applicable law by Agency or an Agency end user; and {¢) a dispute between
Agency and a third-party over Agency's use of Axon Devices.

Termination.

171 For Breach. A Party may terminate this Agreement for cause if it provides 30 days written notice
of the breach to the other Party, and the breach remains uncured at the end of 30 days. If Agency
terminates this Agreement due to Axon's uncured breach, Axon will refund prepaid amounts on a
prorated basis based on the effective date of termination.

17.2 By Agency. If sufficient funds are not appropriated or otherwise legally available to pay the fees,
Agency may terminate this Agreement. Agency will deliver notice of termination under this section
as soon as reasonably practicable.

17.3  Effect of Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, Agency rights immediately terminate.
Agency remains responsible for all fees incurred before the effective date of termination. If Agency
purchases Axon Devices for less than the manufacturer’s suggested retail price (‘MSRP”) and this
Agreement terminates before the end of the Term, Axon will invoice Agency the difference between
the MSRP for Axon Devices received, including any Spare Axon Devices, and amounts paid
towards those Axon Devices. Only if terminating for non-appropriation, Agency may return Axon
Devices to Axon within 30 days of termination. MSRP is the standalone price of the individual Axon
Device at the time of sale. For bundled Axon Devices, MSRP is the standalone price of all individual
components.

Confidentiality. “Confidential Information” means nonpublic information designated as confidential or,
given the nature of the information or circumstances surrounding disclosure, should reasonably be

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Oniine)

Department: Legal

Version: 1.0

Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 3 of 47



}\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between
A Axon and Agency (Online)

understood to be confidential. Each Party will take reasonable measures to avoid disclosure, dissemination,
or unautherized use of the other Party’s Confidential Information, Unless required by law, neither Party will
disclose the other Party’s Confidential Information during the Term and for 5-years thereafter. Axon pricing
is Confidential Information and competition sensitive, If Agency is required by law to disclose Axon pricing,
to the extent allowed by law, Agency will provide notice to Axon before disclosure. Axon may publicly
announce information related to this Agreement.

19 General.

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

19.5

19.6

19.7

19.8

19.9

19.10

19.11

19.12

Force Majeure. Neither Party will be liable for any delay or failure to perform due to a cause beyond
a Party’s reasonable control,

Independent Contractors. The Parties are independent contractors. Neither Party has the
authority to bind the other. This Agreement does not create a partnership, franchise, joint venture,
agency, fiduciary, or employment relationship between the Parties.

Third-Party Beneficiaries. There are no third-party beneficiaries under this Agreement.

Non-Discrimination. Neither Party nor its employees will discriminate against any person based
on race; religion; creed; color; sex; gender identity and expression; pregnancy; childbirth;
breastfeeding; medical conditions related to pregnancy, childbirth, or breastfeeding; sexual
orientation; marital status; age; national origin; ancestry; genetic information; disability; veteran
status; or any class protected by local, state, or federal law.

Export Compliance. Each Party will comply with all import and export control laws and regulations,

Assignment. Neither Parly may assign this Agreement without the other Party's prior written
consent. Axon may assign this Agreement, its rights, or obligations without consent: (a) to an
affiliate or subsidiary; or (b} for purposes of financing, merger, acquisition, corporate reorganization,
or sale of all or substantially all its assets. This Agreement is binding upon the Parties respective
successors and assigns.

Waiver. No waiver or delay by either Party in exercising any right under this Agreement constitutes
a waiver of that right.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any- portion of this Agreement invalid or
unenforceable, the remaining portions of this Agreement will remain in effect.

Survival. The following sections will survive termination: Payment, Warranty, Axon Device
Warnings, Indemnification, IP Rights, and Agency Responsibilities.

Governing Law. The laws of the state where Agency is physically located, without reference to
conflict of law rules, govern this Agreement and any dispute arising from it. The United Nations
Convention for the International Sale of Goods does not apply to this Agreement.

Notices. All notices must be in English. Notices posted on Agency's Axon Evidence site are
effective upon posting. Notices by email are effective on the sent date of the email. Notices by
personal delivery are effective immediately. Contact information for notices:

Axon: Axon Enterprise, Inc. Agency:

Attn: Legal Atin:

17800 N. 85th Street Street Address
Scottsdale, Arizona 85255 City, State, Zip
legal@axon.com Email

Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the Appendices and any SOW(s), represents the
entire agreement between the Parties. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements or

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency {Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 4 of 47



understandings, whether written or verbal, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement. This
Agreement may only be modified or amended in a writing signed by the Parties.

Each representative identified below declares they have been expressly authorized to execute this Agreement as
of the date of signature.

Axon Enterprise, Inc. Agency
Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 5 of 47



1\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

Axon Cloud Services Terms of Use Appendix

1 Definitions.
“Agency Content” is data uploaded into, ingested by, or created in Axon Cloud Services within
Agency's tenant, including media or multimedia uploaded into Axon Cloud Services by Agency.
Agency Content includes Evidence but excludes Non-Content Data.

“Evidence” is media or multimedia uploaded into Axon Evidence as 'evidence' by an Agency.
Evidence is a subset of Agency Content.

‘Non-Content Data” is data, configuration, and usage information about Agency's Axon Cloud
Services tenant, Axon Devices and client software, and users that is transmitted or generated when
using Axon Devices. Non-Content Data includes data about users captured during account
management and customer support activities. Non-Content Data does not include Agency Content.

“Personal Data" means any information relating to an identified or identifiable natural person. An
identifiable natural person is one who can be identified, directly or indirectly, in particular by
reference to an identifier such as a name, an identification number, location data, an online identifier
or to one or more factors specific to the physical, physiological, genetic, mental, economic, cultural
or social identity of that natural person.

2 Access. Upon Axon granting Agency a subscription to Axon Cloud Services, Agency may access
and use Axon Cloud Services to store and manage Agency Content. Agency may not exceed more
end users than the Quote specifies. Axon Air requires an Axon Evidence subscription for each
drone operator. For Axon Evidence Lite, Agency may access and use Axon Evidence only to store
and manage TASER CEW and TASER CAM data (“TASER Data”). Agency may not upload non-
TASER Data to Axcn Evidence Lite.

3 Agency Owns Agency Content. Agency controls and owns all right, title, and interest in Agency
Content. Except as oullined herein, Axon obtains no interest in Agency Content, and Agency
Content is not Axon's business records. Agency is solely responsible for uploading, sharing,
managing, and deleting Agency Content. Axon will only have access to Agency Content for the
limited purposes set forth herein. Agency agrees to allow Axon access to Agency Content to (a)
perform troubleshooting, maintenance, or diagnostic screenings; and (b) enforce this Agreement
or policies governing use of the Axon products.

4 Security. Axon will implement commercially reasonable and appropriate measures to secure
Agency Content against accidental or unlawful loss, access or disclosure. Axon will maintain a
comprehensive information security program to protect Axon Cloud Services and Agency Content
including logical, physical access, vulnerability, risk, and configuration management; incident
monitoring and response; encryption of uploaded digital evidence; security education; and data
protection. Axon agrees to the Federal Bureau of Investigation Criminal Justice Information
Services Security Addendum.

5 Agency Responsibilities. Agency is responsible for (a) ensuring Agency owns Agency Content;
{b) ensuring no Agency Centent or Agency end user's use of Agency Content or Axon Cloud
Services violates this Agreement or applicable laws; and (¢) maintaining necessary computer
equipment and Internet connections for use of Axon Cloud Services. If Agency becomes aware of
any violation of this Agreement by an end user, Agency will immediately terminate that end user's
access to Axon Cloud Services.

Agency will also maintain the security of end user names and passwords and security and access
by end users to Agency Content. Agency is responsible for ensuring the configuration and utilization
of Axon Cloud Services meet applicable Agency regulation and standards. Agency may not sell,
transfer, or sublicense access to any other entity or person. Agency shall contact Axon immediately

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency {Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 6 of 47



1\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
7 N between Axon and Agency (Online)

10

11

12

if an unauthorized party may be using Agency's account or Agency Content, or if account
information is lost or stolen.

To the extent Agency uses the Axon Cloud Services to interact with YouTube®, such use may be
governed by the YouTube Terms of Service, available at
https://www.youtube.com/static?template=terms.

Privacy. Agency’s use of Axon Cloud Services is subject to the Axon Cloud Services Privacy
Policy, a current version of which is available at https://www.axon.com/legal/cloud-services-
privacy-policy. Agency agrees to allow Axon access to Non-Content Data from Agency to (a)
perform troubleshooting, maintenance, or diagnostic screenings; (b) provide, develop, improve,
and support current and future Axon products and related services; and (c) enforce this Agreement
or policies governing the use of Axon products.

Axon Body 3 Wi-Fi Positioning. Axon Body 3 cameras offer a feature to enhance location
services where GPS/GNSS signals may not be available, for instance, within buildings or
underground. Agency administrators can manage their choice to use this service within the
administrative features of Axon Cloud Services. If Agency chooses to use this service, Axon must
also enable the usage of the feature for Agency’s Axon Cloud Services tenant. Agency will not see
this option with Axon Cloud Services unless Axon has enabled Wi-Fi Positioning for Agency's Axon
Cloud Services tenant. When Wi-Fi Positioning is enabled by both Axon and Agency, Non-Content
and Personal Data will be sent to Skyhook Holdings, Inc. (“Skyhook”} to facilitate the Wi-Fi
Positioning functionality. Data controlled by Skyhook is outside the scope of the Axon Cloud
Services Privacy Policy and is subject to the Skyhook Services Privacy Policy.

Storage. For Axon Unlimited Device Storage subscriptions, Agency may store unlimited data in
Agency's Axon Evidence account only if data originates from Axon Capture or the applicable Axon
Device. Axon may charge Agency additional fees for exceeding purchased storage amounts. Axon
may place Agency Content that Agency has not viewed or accessed for 6 months into archival
storage. Agency Content in archival storage will not have immediate availability and may take up
to 24 hours to access.

Location of Storage. Axon may transfer Agency Content to third-party subcontractors for storage.
Axon will determine the locations of data centers for storage of Agency Content. For United States
agencies, Axon will ensure all Agency Content stored in Axon Cloud Services remains within the
United States. Ownership of Agency Content remains with Agency.

Suspension. Axon may temporarily suspend Agency’s or any end user’s right to access or use
any portion or all of Axon Cloud Services immediately upon notice, if Agency or end user’s use of
or registration for Axon Cloud Services may (a) pose a security risk to Axon Cloud Services or any
third-party; (b) adversely impact Axon Cloud Services , the systems, or content of any other
customer; (c) subject Axon, Axon’s affiliates, or any third-party to liability; or (d) be fraudulent.

Agency remains responsible for all fees incurred through suspension. Axon will not delete Agency
Content because of suspension, except as specified in this Agreement.

Axon Cloud Services Warranty. Axon disclaims any warranties or responsibility for data
corruption or errors before Agency uploads data to Axon Cloud Services.

Axon Records. Axon Records is the software-as-a-service product that is generally available at
the time Agency purchases an OSP 7 bundle. During Agency's Axon Records Subscription Term,
Agency will be entitled to receive Axon's Update and Upgrade releases on an if-and-when available
basis.

The Axon Records Subscription Term will end upon the competition of the Axon Records
Subscription as documented in the Quote, or if purchased as part of an OSP 7 bundle, upon

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency {Online)

Department: Legal

Version: 1.0

Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 7 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

13

14

15

16

17

competition of the OSP 7 Term (“Axon Records Subscription”)

An “Update” is a generally available release of Axon Records that Axon makes available from time
to time. An “Upgrade” includes (i) new versions of Axon Records that enhance features and
functionality, as solely determined by Axon; and/or (i) new versions of Axon Records that provide
additional features or perform additional functions. Upgrades exclude new products that Axon
introduces and markets as distinct products or applications.

New or additional Axon products and applications, as well as any Axon professional services
needed to configure Axon Records, are not included. If Agency purchases Axon Records as part
of a bundled offering, the Axon Record subscription begins on the later of the (1) start date of that
bundled offering, or (2} date Axon provisions Axon Records to Agency.

Axon Cloud Services Restrictions. Agency and Agency end users (including employees,

contractors, agents, officers, volunteers, and directors), may not, or may not attempt to:

131 copy, modify, tamper with, repair, or create derivative works of any part of Axon Cloud
Services;

13.2  reverse engineer, disassemble, or decompile Axon Cloud Services or apply any process
to derive any source code included in Axon Cloud Services, or allow others to do the same;

13.3  access or use Axon Cloud Services with the intent to gain unauthorized access, avoid
incurring fees or exceeding usage limits or quotas;

13.4 use trade secret information contained in Axon Cloud Services, except as expressly
permitted in this Agreement;

13.5  access Axon Cloud Services to build a competitive device or service or copy any features,
functions, or graphics of Axon Cloud Services;

13.6 remove, alter, or obscure any confidentiality or proprietary rights notices (including
copyright and trademark notices) of Axon's or Axon's licensors on or within Axon Cloud
Services; or

13.7 use Axon Cloud Services to store or transmit infringing, libelous, or other unlawful or
tortious material; to store or transmit material in viclation of third-party privacy rights; or to
store or transmit malicious code.

After Termination. Axon will not delete Agency Content for 80-days following termination. There
will be no functionality of Axon Cloud Services during these 90-days other than the ability to retrieve
Agency Content. Agency will hot incur additional fees if Agency downloads Agency Content from
Axon Cloud Services during this time. Axon has no obligation to maintain or provide Agency
Content after these 90-days and will thereafter, unless legally prohibited, delete all Agency Content.
Upon request, Axon will provide written proof that Axen successfully deleted and fully removed all
Agency Content from Axon Cloud Services.

Post-Termination Assistance. Axon will provide Agency with the same post-termination data
retrieval assistance that Axon generally makes available to all customers. Requests for Axon to
provide additional assistance in downloading or transferring Agency Content, including requests
for Axon's data egress service, will result in additional fees and Axon will not warrant or guarantee
data integrity or readability in the external system.

U.S. Government Rights. If Agency is a U.S. Federal department cr using Axon Cloud Services
on behalf of a U.S. Federal department, Axon Cloud Services is provided as a “commercial item,”
“‘commercial computer software,” “commercial computer software documentation,” and “technical
data”, as defined in the Federal Acquisition Regulation and Defense Federal Acquisition Regulation
Supplement. If Agency is using Axon Cloud Services on behalf of the U.S. Government and these
terms fail to meet the U.S. Government’s needs or are inconsistent in any respect with federal law,
Agency will immediately discontinue use of Axon Cloud Services.

Survival. Upon any termination of this Agreement, the following sections in this Appendix will

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online}

Department: Legal

Version: 1.0

Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 8 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement

7 N between Axon and Agency (Online)
survive: Agency Owns Agency Content, Storage, Axon Cloud Services Warranty, and Axon Cloud
Services Restrictions.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 9 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

Professional Services Appendix

1 Utilization of Services. Agency must use professional services as outlined in the Quote and this
Appendix within 6 months of the Effective Date.

2 Body-Worn Camera Full Service (BWC Full Service). BWC Full Service includes advance
remote project planning and configuration support and up to 4 consecutive days of on-site service
and a professional services manager to work with Agency to assess Agency's deployment and
determine which on-site services are appropriate. If Agency requires more than 4 consecutive on-
site days, Agency must purchase additional days. BWC Full Service options include:

System set up and configuration
* Instructor-led setup of Axon View on smartphones (if applicable)
e Configure categories and custom roles based on Agency need
» Register cameras to Agency domain
+ Troubleshoot IT issues with Axon Evidence and Axon Dock (“Dock™) access
*  One on-site session included

Dock configuration
*  Work with Agency to decide the ideal location of Docks and set configurations on Dock
» Authenticate Dock with Axon Evidence using admin credentials from Agency
* On-site assistance, not to include physical mounting of docks

Best practice implementation planning session
« Provide considerations for the establishment of video policy and system operations best
practices based oh Axon’'s observations with other agencies
s Discuss the importance of entering metadata in the field for organization purposes and other
best practice for digital data management
* Provide referrals of other agencies using the Axon camera devices and Axon Evidence
¢« Recommend rollout plan based on review of shift schedules

System Admin and troubleshooting training sessions
Step-by-step explanation and assistance for Agency's configuration of security, roles & permissions,
categories & retention, and other specific settings for Axen Evidence

Axon instructor training (Train the Trainer)
Training for Agency’s in-house instructors who can support Agency's Axon camera and Axon Evidence
training needs after Axon has fulfilled its contractual on-site obligations

Evidence sharing training
Tailored workflow instruction for Investigative Units on sharing Cases and Evidence with local
prosecuting agencies

End user go-live training and support sessions
+ Assistance with device set up and configuration
* Training on device use, Axon Evidence, and Evidence Sync

Implementation document packet

Axon Evidence administrator guides, camera impfementation guides, network setup guide, sample
policies, and categories & roles guide

Post go-live review

3 Body-Worn Camera Starter Service (BWC Starter). BWC Starter includes advance remote

project planning and configuration support and one day of on-site Services and a professional
services manager to work closely with Agency to assess Agency's deployment and determine
which Services are appropriate. If Agency requires more than 1 day of on-site Services, Agency
must purchase additional on-site Services. The BWC Starter options include:

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 10 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2A between Axon and Agency (Online)

System set up and configuration (Remote Support)
* Instructor-led setup of Axon View on smartphones (if applicable)
s Configure categories & custom roles based on Agency need
¢ Troubleshoot IT issues with Axon Evidence and Axon Dock (“Dock”) access

Dock configuration
+  Work with Agency to decide the ideal location of Dock setup and set configurations on Dock
+ Authenticate Dock with Axon Evidence using "Administrator” credentials from Agency
+ Does not include physical mounting of docks

Axon instructor training (Train the Trainer)
Training for Agency's in-house instructors who can support Agency’s Axon camera and Axon Evidence
training needs after Axon’s has fulfilled its contracted on-site abligations

End user go-live training and support sessions
+ Assistance with device set up and configuration
» Training on device use, Axon Evidence, and Evidence Sync
Implementation document packet
Axon Evidence administrator guides, camera implementation guides, network setup guide, sample
policies, and categories & roles guide

4 Body-Worn Camera Virtual 1-Day Service {(BWC Virtual}. BWC Virtual includes all items in the
BWC Starter Service Package, except one day of on-site services.

5 CEW Services Packaies. CEW Services Packac.)es are detailed below:

System set up and configuration
¢ Configure Axon Evidence categories & custom roles based on Agency need.
s Troubleshoot IT issues with Axon Evidence.
+ Register users and assign roles in Axon Evidence.
+ Forthe CEW Full Service Package: On-site assistance included
» For the CEW Starter Package: Virtual assistance included
Dedicated Project Manager
Assignment of specific Axon representative for all aspects of planning the rollout (Project Manager).
Ideally, Project Manager will be assigned to Agency 4-6 weeks before rollout

Best practice implementation planning session to include:

« Provide considerations for the establishment of CEW policy and system operations best
practices based on Axon's observations with other agencies
Discuss the importance of entering metadata and best practices for digital data management
Provide referrals to other agencies using TASER CEWs and Axon Evidence
For the CEW Full Service Package: On-site assistance included

* For the CEW Starter Package: Virtual assistance included
System Admin and troubleshooting fraining sessions
On-site sessions providing a step-by-step explanation and assistance for Agency's configuration of
security, roles & permissions, categories & retention, and other specific settings for Axon Evidence
Axon Evidence Instructor training

+ Provide training on the Axon Evidence to educate instructors who can support Agency’s

subsequent Axon Evidence training needs.

+ Forthe CEW Full Service Package: Training for up to 3 individuals at Agency

+ For the CEW Starter Package: Training for up to 1 individual at Agency
TASER CEW inspection and device assignment
Axon's on-site professional services team will perform functions check on all new TASER CEW Smart
weapons and assigh them to a user on Axon Evidence.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency {(Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 11 of 47



1\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

Post go-live review
For the CEW Full Service Package: On-site assistance included.
For the CEW Starter Package: Virtual assistance included.

6 Smart Weapon Transition Service. The Smart Weapen Transition Service includes:

Archival of CEW Firing Logs

Axon’s on-site professional services team will upload CEW firing logs to Axon Evidence from all TASER
CEW Smart Weapons that Agency is replacing with newer Smart Weapon models.

Return of Old Weapons

Axon's on-site professional service team will ship all old weapons back to Axon’s headquarters.

Axon will provide Agency with a Certificate of Destruction

*Note: CEW Full Service packages for TASER 7 include Smart Weapon Transition Service instead of 1-
Day Device Specific Instructor Course.

7 Signal Sidearm Installation Service. If Agency purchases Signal Sidearm Installation Service,
Axon will provide one day of on-site Services and one professional services manager and will cover
the installation of up 100 Signal Sidearm devices per package purchased. Agency is responsible
for providing an appropriate work area and ensuring all holsters that will have Signal Sidearm
installed onto them are available on the agreed-upon installation date(s). Installation includes:

Remaoval of existing connection screws that affix a holster to a holster mount

Proper placement of the Signal Sidearm Mounting Plate between the holster and the mount
Reattachment of the holster to the mount using appropriate screws

Functional testing of Signal Sidearm device

8 Out of Scope Services. Axon is only responsible to perform the professional services described
in the Quote and this Appendix. Any additional professional services are out of scope. The Parties
must document scope changes in a written and signed change order. Changes may require an
equitable adjustment in the charges or schedule.

9 Delivery of Services. Axon personnel will work Monday through Friday, 8:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m.,
except holidays. Axon will perform all on-site tasks over a consecutive timeframe. Axon will not
charge Agency travel time by Axon personnel to Agency premises as work hours.

10 Access Computer Systems to Perform Services. Agency authorizes Axon to access relevant
Agency computers and networks, solely for performing the Services. Axon will work to identify as

soon as reasonably practicable resources and information Axon expects to use and will provide an
initial itemized list to Agency. Agency is responsible for and assumes the risk of any problems,
delays, losses, claims, or expenses resulling from the content, accuracy, completeness, and
consistency of all data, materials, and information supplied by Agency.

11 Site Preparation. Axon will provide a hardcopy or digital copy of current user documentation for
the Axon Devices ("User Documentation”). User Documentation will include all required
environmental specifications for the prefessional Services and Axon Devices to operate per the
Axon Device User Documentation. Before installation of Axon Devices (whether performed by
Agency or Axon), Agency must prepare the location{s) where Axon Devices are to be installed
{“Installation Site"} per the environmental specifications in the Axon Device User Documentation.
Following installation, Agency must maintain the Installation Site per the environmental
specifications. If Axon madifies Axon Device User Documentation for any Axon Devices under this
Agreement, Axon will provide the update to Agency when Axon generally releases it

12 Acceptance. When Axon completes professional Services, Axon will present an acceptance form
("Acceptance Form"} to Agency. Agency will sign the Acceptance Form acknowledging
completion. If Agency reasonably believes Axon did not complete the professional Services in

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agréement between Axon and Agency (Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 12 of 47



l\ Q XO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement

2 between Axon and Agency {Online)
substantial conformance with this Agreement, Agency must notify Axon in writing of the specific
reasons for rejection within 7 calendar days from delivery of the Acceptance Form. Axon will
address the issues and re-present the Acceptance Form for signature. If Axon does not receive the
signed Acceptance Form or written notification of reasons for rejection within 7 calendar days of

delivery of the Acceptance Form, Axon will deem Agency to have accepted the professional
Services.

13 Agency Network. For work performed by Axon transiting or making use of Agency's network,
Agengcy is solely responsible for maintenance and functionality of the netwark. In no event will Axon
be liable for loss, damage, or corruption of Agency’s network from any cause.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 13 of 47



1\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
24 between Axon and Agency {Online)

Technology Assurance Plan Appendix

If Technology Assurance Plan (“TAP”) or a bundle including TAP is on the Quote, this appendix applies.

1

TAP Warranty. The TAP warranty is an extended warranty that starts at the end of the 1-year
Hardware Limited Warranty.

Officer Safety Plan. If Agency purchases an Officer Safety Plan ("OSP"), Agency will receive the
deliverables detailed in the Quote. Agency must accept delivery of the TASER CEW and
accessories as soon as available from Axon.

OSP 7 Term. OSP 7 begins after Axon ships the Axon Body 3 or TASER 7 hardware to Agency. If
Axon ships in the first half of the month, OSP 7 starts the 1st of the foliowing month. If Axon ships
in the second half of the month, OSP 7 starts the 15th of the following month ("OSP 7 Term”).

TAP BWC Upgrade. If Agency has no outstanding payment obligations and purchased TAP, Axon
will provide Agency a new Axon body-worn camera ("BWC Upgrade”) as scheduled in the Quote.
If Agency purchased TAP Axon will provide a BWC Upgrade that is the same or like Axon Device,
at Axon's option. Axon makes no guarantee the BWC Upgrade will utilize the same accessories or
Axon Dock.

TAP Dock Upgrade. If Agency has no outstanding payment obligations and purchased TAP, Axon
will provide Agency a new Axon Dock as scheduled in the Quote (‘Dock Upgrade”). Accessoaries
associated with any Dock Upgrades are subject to change at Axon discretion. Dock Upgrades will
only include a new Axon Dock bay configuration unless a new Axon Dock core is required for BWC
compatibility. [f Agency originally purchased a single-bay Axon Dock, the Dock Upgrade will be a
single-bay Axon Dock model that is the same or like Axon Device, at Axon’s option. If Agency
originally purchased a multi-bay Axon Dock, the Dock Upgrade will be a multi-bay Axon Dock that
is the same or like Axon Device, at Axon's option.

Upgrade Delay. Axon may ship the BWC and Dock Upgrades as scheduled in the Quote without
prior confirmation from Agency unless the Parties agree in writing otherwise at least 90 days in
advance. Axon may ship the final BWC and Dock Upgrade as scheduled in the Quote 60 days
before the end of the Subscription Term without prior confirmation from Agency.

Upgrade Change. If Agency wants to change Axon Device models for the offered BWC or Dock
Upgrade, Agency must pay the price difference between the MSRP for the offered BWC or Dock
Upgrade and the MSRP for the model desired. If the model Agency desires has an MSRP less than
the MSRP of the offered BWC Upgrade or Dock Upgrade, Axon will not provide a refund. The
MSRP is the MSRP in sffect at the lime of the upgrade.

Return of Original Axon Device. Within 30 days of receiving a BWC or Dock Upgrade, Agency
must return the original Axon Devices to Axon or destroy the Axon Devices and provide a certificate
of destruction to Axon including serial numbers for the destroyed Axon Devices. If Agency does not
return or destroy the Axon Devices, Axon will deactivate the serial numbers for the Axon Devices
received by Agency.

Termination. If Agency's payment for TAP, OSP, or Axon Evidence is more than 30 days past due,

Axon may terminate TAP or OSP. Once TAP or OSP terminates for any reason:

9.1 TAP and OSP coverage terminate as of the date of termination and no refunds will be
given.

9.2 Axon will not and has no obligation to provide the Upgrade Models.

9.3 Agency must make any missed payments due to the termination before Agency may
purchase any future TAP or OSP.

TASER 7 Appendix

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (online)

Department: Legal
Version: 1.0

Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 14 of 47



[\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
24 between Axon and Agency (Online)

This TASER 7 Appendix applies to Agency's TASER 7, OSP 7, or OSP 7 Plus purchase from Axon.

1

Duty Cartridge Replenishment Plan. If the Quote includes “Duty Cartridge Replenishment
Plan”, Agency must purchase the plan for each CEW user. A CEW user includes officers that use
a CEW in the line of duty and those that only use a CEW for training. Agency may not resell
cartridges received. Axon will only replace cartridges used in the line of duty.

Training. If the Quote includes a training voucher, Agency must use the voucher within 1 year of
issuance, or the voucher will be void. Axon will issue Agency a voucher annually beginning on the
start of the TASER Subscription Term. The voucher has no cash value. Agency cannot exchange
it for another device or service. Unless stated in the Quote, the vaucher does not include travel
expenses and will be Agency's responsibility. If the Quote includes Axon Online Training or Virtual
Reality Content Empathy Development for Autism/Schizophrenia (collectively, “Training
Content”), Agency may access Training Content. Axon will deliver all Training Content
electronically.

Extended Warranty. If the Quote includes an extended warranty, the extended warranty coverage
period warranty will be for a 5-year term, which includes the hardware manufacturer's warranty plus
the 4-year extended term,

Trade-in. If the Quote contains a discount on CEW-related line items, including items related to
OSP, then that discount may only be applied as a trade-in credit, and Agency must return used
hardware and accessories associated with the discount (“Trade-In Units") to Axon. Agency must
ship batteries via ground shipping. Axon will pay shipping costs of the return. If Axon does not
receive Trade-In Units within the timeframe below, Axon will inveice Agency the value of the trade-
in credit. Agency may not destroy Trade-In Units and receive a trade-in credit.

Agency Size Days to Return from Start Date of TASER 7 Subscription

Less than 100 officers 30 days
100 to 499 officers 90 days
500+ officers 180 days

TASER 7 Subscription Term. The TASER 7 Subscription Term for a standalone TASER 7
purchase begins on shipment of the TASER 7 hardware. The TASER 7 Subscription Term for OSP
7 begins on the OSP 7 Start date.

Access Rights. Upon Axon granting Agency a TASER 7 Axon Evidence subscription, Agency may
access and use Axon Evidence for the storage and management of data from TASER 7 CEW
devices during the TASER 7 Subscription Term. Agency may not upload any non-TASER 7 data
or any other files to Axon Evidence. Agency may not exceed the number of end users than the
Quote specifies.

Privacy. Axon will not disclose Agency Content or any information about Agency except as
compelled by a court or administrative body or required by any law or regulation. Axon will give
notice if any disclosure request is received for Agency Content, so Agency may file an objection
with the court or administrative hody.

Termination. If payment for TASER 7 is more than 30 days past due, Axon may terminate

Agency's TASER 7 plan by notifying Agency. Upon termination for any reason, then as of the

date of termination:

8.1 TASER 7 extended warranties and access to Training Content will terminate. No refunds
will be given.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)

Department: Legal
Version: 1.0

Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 15 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

8.2 Axon will invoice Agency the remaining MSRP for TASER 7 products received before
termination. If terminating for non-appropriations, Axon will not invoice Agency if Agency
returns the CEW, rechargeable battery, holster, dock, core, training suits, and unused
cartridges to Axon within 30 days of the date of termination.

8.3 Agency will be responsible for payment of any missed payments due to the termination
before being allowed to purchase any future TASER 7 plan.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Oniine)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 16 of 47



l\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online}

Axon Auto-Tagging Appendix

1 Scope. Axon Auto-Tagging consists of the development of a module to allow Axon Evidence to
interact with Agency’'s Computer-Aided Dispatch (“CAD”} or Records Management Systems (“RMS”).
This allows end users to auto-populate Axon video meta-data with a case {D, category, and location-
based on data maintained in Agency's CAD or RMS,

2 Support. For thirty days after completing Auto-Tagging Services, Axon will provide up to 5 hours
of remote support at no additional charge. Axon will provide free support due to a change in Axon
Evidence, so long as long as Agency maintains an Axon Evidence and Auto-Tagging subscription.
Axon will not provide support if a change is required because Agency changes its CAD or RMS.

3 Changes. Axon is only responsible to perform the Services in this Appendix. Any additional
Services are out of scope. The Parties must document scope changes in a written and signed
change order. Changes may require an equitable adjustment in fees or schedule.

4 Agency Responsibilities. Axon’s performance of Auto-Tagging Services requires Agency to:

4.1 Make available relevant systems, including Agency's current CAD or RMS, for assessment
by Axon (including remote access if possible};

4.2 Make required modifications, upgrades or alterations to Agency’s hardware, facilities,
systems and networks related to Axon’s performance of Auto-Tagging Services;

4.3 Provide access to the premises where Axon is performing Auto-Tagging Services, subject
to Agency safety and security restrictions, and allow Axon to enter and exit the premises
with laptops and materials needed to perform Auto-Tagging Services;

4.4 Provide all infrastructure and software information (TCP/IP addresses, node names,
netwark configuration) necessary for Axon to provide Auto-Tagging Services;

4.5 Promptly install and implement any software updates provided by Axon;

4.6 Ensure that all appropriate data backups are performed;

4.7 Provide assistance, participation, and approvals in testing Auto-Tagging Services;

4.8 Provide Axon with remote access to Agency's Axon Evidence account when required;

49 Notify Axon of any network or machine maintenance that may impact the performance of
the module at Agency; and

410  Ensure reasonable availability of knowledgeable staff and personnel to provide timely,
accurate, complete, and up-to-date documentation and information to Axon.

5 Access to Systems. Agency authorizes Axon to access Agency’s relevant computers, network
systems, and CAD or RMS solely for performing Auto-Tagging Services. Axon will work diligently
to identify as soon as reasonably practicable resources and information Axon expects to use and
will provide an initial list to Agency. Agency is responsible for and assumes the risk of any problems,
delays, losses, claims, or expenses resulting from the content, accuracy, completeness, and
consistency of all data, materials, and information supplied by Agency.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 17 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
7 N between Axon and Agency (Online)

Axon Fleet Appendix

1 Agency Responsibilities. Agency must ensure its infrastructure and vehicles adhere to the
minimum requirements to operate Axon Fleet 2 or Axon Fleet 3 (collectively, “Axon Fleet”) as
established by Axon during the qualifier call and on-site assessment at Agency and in any technical
qualifying questions. If Agency's representations are inaccurate, the Quote is subject to change.

2 Cradlepoint. If Agency purchases Cradlepoint Enterprise Cloud Manager, Agency will comply with
Cradlepoint’s end user license agreement. The term of the Cradlepoint license may differ from the
Axon Evidence Subscription. If Agency requires Cradlepoint support, Agency will contact

Cradlepoint directly.

3 Third-party Installer. Axon will not be liable for the failure of Axon Fleet hardware to operate per
specifications if such failure results from installation not performed by, or as directed by Axon.

4 Wireless Offload Server.
4.1 License Grant. Axon grants Agency a non-exclusive, royalty-free, worldwide, perpetual

license to use Wireless Offload Server ("WOS8"). “Use” means storing, loading, installing,
or executing WOS solely for data communication with Axon Devices for the number of
licenses purchased. The WOS term begins upon the start of the Axon Evidence
Subscription.

4,2 Restrictions. Agency may not: (a) modify, alter, tamper with, repair, or create derivative
works of WOS; (b) reverse engineer, disassemble, or decompile WS, apply any process
to derive the source code of WOS, or allow others to do so; (¢) access or use WOS to aveid
incurring fees or exceeding usage limits; (d) copy WOS in whole or part; (e} use frade
secret information contained in WOS; (f) resell, rent, loan or sublicense WOS; {g) access
WOS to build a competitive device or service or copy any features, functions or graphics
of WOS; or (h) remove, alter or obscure any confidentiality or proprietary rights notices
(including copyright and frademark notices) of Axon or Axon’s licensors on or within WOS,

4.3 Updates. If Agency purchases WOS maintenance, Axon will make updates and error
corrections to WOS {"WOS Updates”) available electronically via the Internet or media as
determined by Axon. Agency is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
Internet access to receive WOS Updates and maintaining computer equipment necessary
for use of WOS. The Quote will detail the maintenance term.

4.4 WOS Support. Upon request by Axon, Agency will provide Axon with access to Agency’s
store and forward servers solely for troubleshooting and maintenance.

5 Axon Vehicle Software.

5.1 License Grant. Axon grants Agency a non-exclusive, royalty-free, worldwide, perpetual
license to use ViewXL or Dashboard (collectively, “Axon Vehicle Software”.) "Use” means
storing, loading, installing, or executing Axon Vehicle Software solely for data
communication with Axon Devices, The Axon Vehicle Software term begins upon the start
of the Axon Evidence Subscription.

5.2 Restrictions. Agency may not: (a} modify, alter, tamper with, repair, or create derivative
works of Axon Vehicle Software; {b) reverse engineer, disassemble, or decompile Axon
Vehicle Software, apply any process to derive the source code of Axon Vehicle Software,
or allow others to do so; (c) access or use Axon Vehicle Software to avoid incurring fees
or exceeding usage limits; (d) copy Axon Vehicle Software in whole or part; (e) use trade
secret information contained in Axon Vehicle Software; (f) resell, rent, loan or sublicense
Axon Vehicle Software; (g) access Axon Vehicle Software to build a competitive device or
service or copy any features, functions or graphics of Axon Vehicle Software; or (h)

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Onling)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 18 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
7 N between Axon and Agency (Online)

remove, alter or obscure any confidentiality or proprietary rights notices (including copyright
and trademark notices} of Axon or Axon’s licensors on or within Axon Vehicle Software.

6 Axon Fleet Upgrade. If Agency has no outstanding payment obligations and has purchased the
“Fleet Technology Assurance Plan” (Fleet TAP}, Axon will provide Agency with the same or like
model of Fleet hardware (“Fleet Upgrade”) as schedule on the Quote,

If Agency would like to change models for the Axon Fleet Upgrade, Agency must pay the difference
between the MSRP for the offered Axon Fieet Upgrade and the MSRP for the model desired. The
MSRP is the MSRP in effect at the time of the upgrade. Agency is responsible for the removal of
previously installed hardware and installation of the Axon Fleet Upgrade.

Within 30 days of receiving the Axon Fleet Upgrade, Agency must return the original Axon Devices
to Axon or destroy the Axon Devices and provide a certificate of destruction to Axon, including
serial numbers of the destroyed Axon Devices. If Agency does not destroy or return the Axon
Devices ta Axon, Axon will deactivate the serial numbers for the Axon Devices received by Agency.

7 Privacy. Axon will not disclose Agency Content or any information about Agency except as
compelled by a court or administrative body or required by any law or regulation. Axon will give
notice if any disclosure request is received for Agency Content, so Agency may file an objection
with the court or administrative body.

8 Axon Fleet Termination. Axon may terminate Agency’s Fleet subscription for nen-payment. Upon
any termination:
8.1 Axon Fleet subscription coverage terminates, and no refunds will be given.

8.2 Axon will not and has no obligation to provide the Axon Fleet Upgrade.
8.3 Agency will be respensible for payment of any missed payments due to the termination
before being allowed to purchase any future Fleet TAP,

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency {Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 19 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
24 between Axon and Agency (Online)

Axon Respond Appendix

This Axon Respond Appendix applies to both Axon Respond and Axon Respond Plus.

1 Axon Respond Subscription Term. If Agency purchases Axon Respond as part of a bundled
offering, the Axon Respond subscription begins on the later of the (1) start date of that bundled
offering, or {2) date Axon provisions Axon Respond to Agency.

If Agency purchases Axon Respond as a standalone, the Axon Respond subscription begins the
later of the (1) date Axon provisions Axon Respond to Agency, or (2} first day of the month following
the Effective Date.

The Axon Respond subscription term will end upon the completion of the Axon Evidence
Subscription associated with Axon Respond.

2 Scope of Axon Respond. The scope of Axon Respond is to assist Agency with real-time
situational awareness during critical incidents to improve officer safety, effectiveness, and
awareness. In the event Agency uses Axen Respond cutside this scope, Axon may initiate good-
faith discussions with Agency on upgrading Agency's Axon Respend to better meet Agency's
needs.

3 Axon Body 3 LTE Requirements. Axon Respond is only available and usable with an LTE
enabled body-worn camera. Axon is not liable if Agency utilizes the LTE device outside of the
coverage area ar if the LTE carrier is unavailable. LTE coverage is only available in the United
States, including any U.S. territories. Axon may utilize a carrier of Axon’s choice to provide LTE
service. Axon may change LTE carriers during the Term without Agency's consent.

4 Axon Fleet 3 LTE Requirements. Axon Respond is only available and usable with a Fleet 3
system configured with LTE modem and service, Agency is responsible for providing LTE service
for the modem. Coverage and availability of LTE service is subject to Agency’'s LTE carrier.

5 Axon Respond Service Limitations. Agency acknowledges that LTE service is made available
only within the operating range of the networks. Service may be temporarily refused, interrupted,
or limited because of: (a) facilities limitations; (b} transmission limitations caused by atmospheric,
terrain, other natural or artificial conditions adversely affecting transmission, weak batteries, system
overcapacity, movement outside a service area or gaps in coverage in a service area and ather
causes reasonably outside of the carrier's control such as intentional or negligent acts of third
parties that damage or impair the network or disrupt service; or {c) equipment modifications,
upgrades, relocations, repairs, and other similar activities necessary for the proper or improved
operation of service.

With regard to Axon Body 3, Partner networks are made available as-is and the carrier makes no
warranties or representations as to the availability or quality of roaming service provided by carrier
partners, and the carrier will not be liable in any capacity for any errors, outages, or failures of
carrier partner networks. Agency expressly understands and agrees that it has no contractual
relationship whatsoever with the underlying wireless service provider or its affiliates or contractors
and Agency is not a third-party beneficiary of any agreement between Axon and the underlying
carrier.

6 Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, or if Agency stops paying for Axon Respond or
bundles that include Axcn Respond, Axon will end Aware services, including any Axon-provided
LTE service.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online}
Department: Lega!
Version: 1.0
Retease Date: 3/31/2021 Page 20 of 47



l\ AXO I\I Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
24 between Axon and Agency (Online)

Add-on Services Appendix

This Appendix applies to Axon Citizen for Communities, Axon Redaction Assistant, and Axon
Performance.

1

Subscription Term. If Agency purchases Axon Citizen for Communities, Axon Redaction
Assistant, or Axon Performance as part of OSP 7, the subscription begins on the later of the (1)
start date of the OSP 7 Term, or (2) date Axon provisions Axon Citizen for Communities, Axon
Redaction Assistant, or Axon Performance to Agency.

If Agency purchases Axon Citizen for Communities, Axon Redaction Assistant, or Axon
Performance as a standalone, the subscription begins the later of the (1) date Axon provisions
Axon Citizen for Communities, Axon Redaction Assistant, or Axon Performance to Agency, or {2)
first day of the month following the Effective Dale.

The subscription term will end upon the completion of the Axon Evidence Subscription associated
with the add-on.

Axon Citizen Storage. For Axon Citizen, Agency may store an unlimited amount of data submitted
through the public portal ("Peortal Content”}, within Agency’s Axon Evidence instance. The post-
termination provisions outlined in the Axon Cloud Services Terms of Use Appendix alse apply to
Portal Content.

Performance Auto-Tagging Data. In order to provide some features of Axon Performance to
Agency, Axon will need to store call for service data from Agency's CAD or RMS,

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)

Department: Legal
Version: 1.0

Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 21 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

Axon Auto-Transcribe Appendix

This Appendix applies to Axon Aute-Transcribe.

1)

4)

Subscription Term. if Agency purchases Axon Auto-Transcribe as part of a bundle or Axon
Cloud Services subscription, the subscription begins on the later of the (1) start date of the bundle
or Axon Cloud Services license term, or {2) date Axon provisions Axon Auto-Transcribe to
Agency. If Agency purchases Axon Auto-Transcribe minutes as a standalone, the subscription
begins on the date Axon provisions Axon Auto-Transcribe to Agency.

Axon Auto-Transcribe minutes expire one year after being provisioned to Agency by Axon,

If Agency cancels Auto-Transcribe services, any amounts owed by the Parties will be based on
the amount of time passed under the annual subscription, rather than on the number of minutes
used, regardless of usage,

Auto-Transcribe A-La-Carte Minutes. Upon Axon granting Agency a set number of minutes,
Agency may utilize Axon Auto-Transcribe, subject to the number of minutes allowed on the
Quote. Agency will not have the ability to roll over unused minutes to future Auto-Transcribe
terms. Axon may charge Agency additional fees for exceeding the number of purchased minutes.

Axon Auto-Transcribe On-Demand. Upon Axon granting Agency an On-Demand subscription
to Axon Auto-Transcribe, Agency may utilize Axon Auto-Transcribe with no limit on the number of
minutes. The scope of Axon Auto-Transcribe On-Demand is to assist Agency with reviewing and
transcribing individual evidence items. In the event Agency uses Axon Auto-Transcribe On-
Demand outside this scope, Axcn may initiate good-faith discussions with Agency on upgrading
Agency’s Axon Auto-Transcribe On-Demand to better meet Agency’'s needs.

Warranty. Axon does not warrant the accuracy of Axen Auto-Transcribe.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)

Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 22 of 47



}\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

Axon Virtual Reality Content Terms of Use Appendix

Term. The Quote will detail the duration of the Virtual Reality Content license.

Headsets, Agency may purchase additionat virtual reality headsets from Axon. In the event Agency

decides to purchase additional virtual reality headsets for use with Axon’s Virtual Reality Content,
Agency must purchase those headsets from Axon.

License Restrictions. All licenses will immediately terminate if Agency does not comply with any

term of this Agreement. If Agency utilizes more users than stated in this Agreement, Agency must
purchase additional Virtual Reality Content licenses from Axon. Agency may not use Virtual Reality
Content for any purpose other than as expressly permitted by this Agreement. Agency may not:

34
3.2

3.3
34
35
3.6

3.7

modify, tamper with, repair, or otherwise create derivative works of Virtual Reality Content;
reverse engineer, disassemble, or decompile Virtual Reality Content or apply any process
to derive the source code of Virtual Reality Content, or allow others to do the same;

copy Virtual Reality Content in whole or part, except as expressly permitted in this
Agreement;

use trade secret information contained in Virtual Reality Content;

resell, rent, loan or sublicense Virtual Reality Content;

access Virtual Reality Content to build a competitive device or service or copy any features,
functions, or graphics of Virtual Reality Content; or

remove, alter, or obscure any confidentiality or proprietary rights notices (including
copyright and trademark notices) of Axon or Axon's licensors on or within Virtual Reality
Content or any copies of Virtual Reality Content.

Termination. Axon may terminate Agency's license immediately for Agency's failure to comply with

any of the terms in this Agreement.

Title

. Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Qnline)

Department: Legal

Version
Release Date

:1.0
1 3/31/2021 Page 23 of 47



1\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

Flock Software Terms of Use Appendix

1 Definitions.
Certain capitalized terms, not otherwise defined herein, have the meanings set forth ar cross-
referenced in this Section 1.

“Aggregated Data” means information that relates to a group or category of customers, from which
individual customer identities have been removed, that is not linked or reasonably linkable to any
customer, including via a device.

“Authorized End User" shall mean any individual employees, agents, or contractors of Customer
accessing or using the Flock Services through the Web Inlerface, under the rights granted to
Customer pursuant to this Agreement,

“Customer Data” will mean the data, media and content provided by Customer through the Flock
Services. For the avoidance of doubt, the Customer Data will include the Footage and geolocation
information and environmental data collected by sensors built into the Units.

‘Documentation” will mean text and/or graphical documentation, whether in electronic or printed
format, that describe the features, functions and cperation of the Flock Services which are provided
by Flock to Customer in accordance with the terms of this Agreement,

“Embedded Software” will mean the software and/or firmware embedded or preinstalled on the
Hardware.

“Flock IP" will mean the Flock Services, the Documentation, the Hardware, the Embedded
Software, the Installation Services, and any and all intellectual property therein or otherwise
provided to Customer and/or its Authorized End Users in connection with the foregoing.

“Flock Services™ means the provision, via the Web Interface, of Flock’s software application for
automatic license plate detection, searching image records, and sharing Footage.

“Flock System” means collectively, the Hardware, Embedded Software, and Flock Services.

“Footage” means still images and/or video captured by the Hardware in the course of and provided
via the Flock Services.

“Hardware” shall mean the Flock cameras and any other physical elements that interact with the
Embedded Software and the Web Interface to provide the Flock Services. The term “Hardware"
excludes the Embedded Software.

‘Implementation Fee(s)' means the monetary fees assocciated with the Installation Services, as
defined in Section 1.9 below.

“Installation Services” means the services provided by Flock including the installation, placements
and configuration of the Hardware, pursuant to any Statement of Work,

“Non-Customer End User” means a Flock customer that has elected to give Customer access to
its data in the Flock System.

“Non-Customer End User Data” means the Footage, geolocation data, environmental data andfor
hatifications of a Non-Customer End User.

“Support Services” shall rnean On-site Services and Monitoring Services, as defined in Section
2.9 below.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 24 of 47




‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

“Unit(s}" shall mean the Hardware together with the Embedded Software.

“Usage Fee” means the subscription fees to be paid by the Customer for ongoing access to
Services and Hardware.

“Web Interface” means the website(s) or application(s) through which Customer and its Authorized
End Users can access the Flock Services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

2 Flock Services.

2.1 Provision of Access. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Flock hereby grants to
Customer a non-exclusive, non-transferable right to access the features and functions of
the Flock Services via the Web Interface during the term of Customer's agreement, solely
for the Authorized End Users. The Footage will be available for Customer's designated
administrator, listed on the Order Form, and any Authorized End Users to access via the
Web Interface for thirty (30} days. Authorized End Users will be required to sign up for an
account, and select a passward and username (“User ID"). Flock will also provide
Customer with the Documentation to be used in accessing and using the Flock Services.
Customer shall be responsible for all acts and omissions of Authorized End Users, and any
act or omission by an Authorized End User which, if undertaken by Customer, would
constitute a breach of this Agreement, shall be deemed a breach of this Agreement by
Customer. Customer shall undertake reasonable efforts to make all Authorized End Users
aware of the provisions of this Agreement as applicable to such Authorized End User's use
of the Services, and shall cause Authorized End Users to comply with such provisions.
Flock may use the services of one or more third parties to deliver any part of the Flock
Services, including without limitation using a third party to host the Web Interface which
makss the Flock Services available to Customer and Authorized End Users. Flock will pass
through any warranties that Flock receives from its then-current third-party service provider
to the extent that such warranties can be provided to Customer. Except in the event of
Flock’s willful misconduct or negligence, such warranties as provided by stich third-parties
are Customer's sole and exclusive remedy and Flock's sole and exclusive liability with
regard to such third-party services, including without limitation, hosting the web interface.
Customer agrees to comply with any acceptable use policies and other terms of any third
party service provider that are provided or otherwise made available to Customer from time
to time.

2.2 Embedded Software License. Subject to all terms of this Agreement, Flock grants
Customer a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-sublicensable (except to the
Authorized End Users), revocable right to use the Embedded Software as installed on the
Hardware by Flock; in each case, solely as necessary for Customer to use the Flock
Services.

23 Documentation License. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Flock hereby grants to
Customer a non-exclusive, non-transferable right and license to use the Documentation
during the Service Term for Customer’s internal purposes in connection with its use of the
Flock Services as contemplated herein.

24 Usage Restrictions. The purpose for usage of the Hardware, Documentation, Services,
support, and Flock IP is solely to facilitate gathering evidence that could be used in a lawful
criminal investigation by the appropriate government agency and not for tracking activities
that the system is net designed to capture ("Permitted Purpose™). Cuslomer will not, and
will not permit any Authorized End Users to, (i) copy or duplicate any of the Flock IP; (ii}
decompile, disassemble, reverse engineer or otherwise attempt to obtain or perceive the
source code from which any software compenent of any of the Flock IP is compiled or
interpreted, or apply any other process or procedure to derive the source code of any
software included in the Flock IP, or attempt to do any of the foregoing, and Customer

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online}

Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 25 of 47




‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

acknowledges that nothing in this Agreement will be construed to grant Customer any right
to obtain or use such source code; {jii) modify, alter, tamper with or repair any of the Flock
IP, or create any derivative product from any of the foregoing, or attempt to do any of the
foregoing, except with the prior written consent of Flock; (iv) interfere or attempt to interfere
in any manner with the functionality or proper working of any of the Flock IP; (v) remove,
obscure, or alter any notice of any intellectual property or proprietary right appearing on or
contained within any of the Flock Services or Flock IP; {vi} use the Flock Services, support,
Hardware, Documentation or the Fltock IP for anything other than the Permitted Purpose;
or (vii) assign, sublicense, sell, resell, lease, rent or otherwise transfer or convey, or pledge
as security or otherwise encumber, Customer's rights under Sections 2.1, 2.2, or 2.3.

2,5 Retained Rights; Ownership. As between the Parties, subject to the rights granted in this
Agreement, Flock and its licensors retain all right, title and interest in and to the Flock IP
and its components, and Customer acknowledges that it neither owns nor acquires any
additional rights in and to the foregoing not expressly granted by this Agreement. Customer
further acknowledges that Flock retains the right to use the foregoing for any purpose in
Flock’s sole discretion. There are no implied rights.

2.6 Suspension. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Flock may
temporarily suspend Customer's and any Authorized End User's access to any portion or
all of the Flock IP if {i} Flock reasonably determines that (a) there is a threat or attack on
any of the Flock IP; (b) Customer’s or any Authorized End User’s use of the Flock Service
disrupts or poses a security risk to the Flock Service or any other customer or vendor of
Flock; (c) Customer or any Authorized End User isfare using the Flock IP for fraudulent or
ilegal activities; (d) Flock’s provision of the Flack Services to Customer or any Autherized
End User is prohibited by applicable law; (g) any vendor of Flock has suspended or
terminated Flock’s access to or use of any third party services or products required to
enable Customer to access the Flock, or {f) Customer has violated any term of this
provision, including, but not limited to, utilizing the Services for anything other than the
Permitted Purpose, and has failed to cure such violation within thirty days following written
notice of such violation from Flock {each such suspension, in accordance with this Section
2.6, a "Service Suspension”). Flock will make commercially reasonable efforts,
circumstances permitting, to provide written notice of any Service Suspension to Customer
(including notices sent to Flock's registered email address} and to provide updates
regarding resumption of access to the Flock IP following any Service Suspension. Flock
will use commercially reasonable efforts to resume providing access to the Flock Service
as soon as reasonably possible after the event giving rise to the Service Suspension is
cured. Flock will extend the Customer's term by the duration of any suspension (for any
continuous suspension lasting at least one full day) where the Service Suspension is not
caused by the direct Customer's actions or by the actions of parties associated with the
Customer. Flock will have no liability for any damage, liabilities, losses (including any loss
of data or profits) or any other consequences that Customer or any Authorized End User
may incur as a result of a Service Suspension.

27 Installation Services.

2.7.1. Designated Locations. Prior to performing the physical installation of the Units,
Flock shall advise Customer on the focation and positioning of the Units for optimal
license plate image capture, as conditions and location allow. While Flock will
provide advice regarding the location of positioning of such Units, Customer will
have the ultimate decision regarding the location, position and angle of the Units
{each Unit location so designated by Customer, a “Designated Location”). Due
to the fact that Customer selects the Designated Location, Flock shall have no
liability to Customer resulting from any poor performance, functionality or Footage
resulting from or otherwise relating to the Designated Locations. After an
installation plan with Designated Locations and equipment has been agreed upon
by both Flack and the Customer, any subsequent changes to the installation plan

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Onfine)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 26 of 47



[\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2A between Axon and Agency (Online)

driven by Customer's request will incur a $250 charge in addition to any equipment
charges. These changes include but are not limited to camera re-positioning,
adjusting of camera mounting, re-angling, changes to heights of poles, and
removing foliage,

2.7.2. Customer's Installation Obligations. Customer agrees to allow Flock and its agents
reasonable access to the designated installation locations at all reasonable times
upon reascnable notice for the purpose of performing the installation work
(together with the preceding sentence, the “Customer Installation Obligations”).
It is understood that the Implementation Fees do not include any permits or
associated costs, any federal, state or local taxes including property, license,
privilege, sales, use, excise, gross receipts or other similar taxes which may now
or hereafter become applicable to, measured by or imposed upon or with respect
to the installation of the Hardware, its use, or any other services performed in
connection therewith and that Customer shall be solely responsible for the
foregoing. Customer represents and warrants that it has all necessary right title
and authority and hereby authorizes Flock to install the Hardware at the
Designated Locations and to make any necessary inspections or tests in
connection with such installation.

2,7.3. Flock's Installation Obligations. The Hardware shall be installed in a workmanlike
manner in accordance with Flock's standard installation procedures, and the
installation will be completed within a reasonable time from the time that the
Designated Locations are selected by Customer. Following the initial installation
of the Hardware and any subsequent Reinslalls or maintenance operations,
Flock's obligation to perform installation work shall cease; however, Flock will
continue to monitor the performance of the Units for the length of the Term and will
receive access to the Footage for a period of three (3} business days after the
initial installation in erder to monitor performance and provide any necessary
maintenance solely as a measure of guality control. Customer can opt out of
Flock's access to Footage afler the initial installation which would waive Flock's
responsibility to ensure such action was successful. Customer understands and
agrees that the Flock Services will not function without the Hardware. Labor may
be provided by Flock or a third party.

2.7.4. Theft and Damage. Flock agrees to replace the Hardware up to one (1) time during
the Term of the Agreement, at no cost to Customer, in the event of theft or damage.
Subsequent replacement due to damage or theft will be at Customer's own
expense, at a replacement cost of three hundred dollars {$300) per camera.
Customer shall not be required to replace subsequently damaged or stolen units;
however, Customer understands and agrees that functionality, including Footage,
will be materially affected due to such subsequently damaged or stolen units and
that Flock wili have no liability to Customer regarding such affected functionality
nor shall the Fees owed be impacted.

2.7.5. Security Interest. The Hardware shall remain the personal propeity of Flock and
wili be removed upon the termination or expiration of Customer's Agreement.
Customer agrees to perform all acts which may be necessary to assure the
retention of title of the Hardware by Flock, Should Customer defaultin any payment
for the Flock Services or any part thereof or offer to sell or auction the Hardware,
then Customer authorizes and empowers Flock to remove the Hardware or any
part thereof. Such removal, if made by Flock, shall not be deemed a waiver of
Flock’s rights to any damages Flock may sustain as a result of Customer’s default
and Flock shall have the right to enforce any other legal remedy or right.

2.3 Hazardous Conditions. Unless otherwise stated in the Agreement, Flock's price for its
services under this Agreement does not contemplate work in any areas that contain
hazardous materials, ¢r other hazardous conditions, including, without limit, asbestos,
lead, toxic or flammable substances. In the event any such hazardous materials are
discovered in the designated locations in which Flock is to perform services under this

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Cnline)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 27 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
.7\ between Axon and Agency (Online)

Agreement, Flock shall have the right to cease work immediately in the area affected until
such materials are removed or rendered harmiess. Any additional expenses incurred by
Flock as a result of the discovery or presence of hazardous material or hazardous
conditions shall be the responsibility of Customer and shall be paid promptly upon billing.

2.9 Support Services. Subject to the payment of fees, Flock shali monitor the performance
and of Flock Services and may, from time to time, advise Customer on changes to the
Services or the Designated Locations which may improve the performance or functionality
of the Services or may improve the quality of the Footage. The work, its timing, and the
fees payable relating to such work shall be agreed by the Parties prior to any alterations to
or changes of the Services or the Designated Locations ("Monitoring Services”). Subject
to the terms hereof, Flock will provide Customer with reasonable technical and on-site
support and maintenance services (“On-Site Services”) in-person or by email at
helle@flocksafety.com. Flock will use commercially reasonable efforts to respond to
requests for support.

210 Intentionally deleted.

2.1 Changes to Platform. Flock Safety may, in its sole discretion, make any changes to any
system or platform that it deems necessary or useful to (i) maintain or enhance {a) the
guality or delivery of Flock Safety's products or services to its customers, (b) the
competitive strength of, or market for, Flock Safety’s products or services, (¢) such platform
or system’s cost efficiency or performance, or (i} to comply with applicable law.

3 Customer Responsibilities.

31 Customer Obligations. Upon creation of a User ID, Customer agrees to provide Flock
with accurate, complete, and updated registration information. Customer may not select
as its User ID a name that Customer does not have the right to use, or another person's
name with the intent to impersonate that person. Customer may not transfer its account to
anyone else without prior written permission. Customer will not share its account or
password with anyone and must protect the security of its account and
password. Customer is responsible for any activity associated with its account. Customer
shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining any equipment and ancillary services
needed to connect to, access or otherwise use the Services. Customer will, at its own
expense, provide assistance to Flock, including, but not limited to, by means of access to,
and use of, Customer facilities, as well as by means of assistance from Customer
personnetl to the limited extent any of the foregoing may be reasonably necessary to enable
Flock to perform its obligations hereunder, including, without limitaticn, any obligations with
respect to Suppoert Services or any Installation Services.

3.2 Customer Representations and Warranties. Customer represents, covenants, and
warranis that Customer will use the Services only in compliance with this Agreement and
all applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to any laws relating to the
recording or sharing of video, photo, or audio content. To the extent allowed by the
governing law of the state mentioned in Section 9.6, or if no state is mentioned in Section
9.6, by the law of the State of Georgia, Customer hereby agrees to indemnify and hold
harmless Flock against any damages, losses, liabilities, settlements and expenses,
including without limitation costs and attorneys' fees, in connection with any claim or action
that arises from an alleged violation of Customer's representations and warranties made
pursuant to this Section 3.2, Customer’s Installation Obligations, or otherwise from
Customer's use of the Flock Services, Hardware and any Embedded Software, including
any claim that such actions violate any applicable law or third party right. Although Flock
has no obligation to monitor Customer's use of the Flock Services, Flock may do so and
may prohibit any use of the Services it believes may be {or alleged to be) in violation of the
foregoing.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency {Online}
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 28 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

4

Confidentiality; Data, Feedback; Aggreqated Statistics.

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

Customer and Non-Customer End User Data. As between Flock and Customer, all right,
title and interest in the Customer Data and Non-Customer End User Data, belong to and
are retained solely by Customer. Customer hereby grants to Flock a limited, non-exclusive,
royalty-free, worldwide license to use the Customer Data and Non-Customer End User
Data and perform all acts with respect to the Customer Data and Non-Customer End User
Data as may be necessary for Flock to provide the Flock Services to Customer, and a non-
exclusive, perpetual, irrevocable, worldwide, royalty-free, fully paid license to use,
reproduce, modify and distribute the Customer Data and Non-Customer End User Data as
a part of the Aggregated Data (as defined in Section 4.4 below). This Agreement does
not by itself make any Non-Customer End User Dala the sole property or the Proprielary
Information of Customer.

Feedback. If Customer provides any suggestions, ideas, enhancement requests,
feedback, recommendations or other infoermation relating to the subject matler hereunder,
Customer hereby assigns (and will cause its agents and representatives to assign) to Flock
all right, title and interest {including intellectual property rights) with respect to or resulting
from any of the foregoing.

Aggregated Data. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Flock shall
have the right to collect and analyze data and other information relating to the provision,
use and performance of various aspects of the Flock Services and related systems and
technologies (including, without limitation, information concerning Customer Data and data
derived therefrom). For the sake of clarity, Aggregated Data is compiled anonymous data
which has been stripped of any personal identifying information. Customer acknowledges
that Flock will be compiling Aggregated Data based on Customer Data and Non-Customer
End User Data input into the Flock Services (“Aggregated Data”). Customer hereby
grants Flock a non-exclusive, worldwide, perpetual, royalty-free right and license (during
and after the Service Term hereof) to use and distribute such Aggregated Data to improve
and enhance the Services and for other marketing, development, diagnostic and corrective
purposes in connection with the Flock Services and other Flock offerings. No rights or
licenses are granted except as expressly set forth herein.

Confidentiality. Each Party (the "Receiving Party”} understands that the other Party (the
“Disclosing Party”) has disclosed or may disclose business, technical or financial
information relating to the Disclosing Party's business (hereinafter referred to as
‘Proprietary Information” of the Disclosing Party). Proprietary Information of Flock
includes non-public information regarding features, functionality and performance of the
Services. Proprietary Information of Customer includes non-public data provided by
Custemer to Flock or collected by Flock via the Unit, including the Footage, to enable the
provision of the Services, which includes but is not limited to geolocation infermation and
environmental data collected by sensors built into the Units {"Customer Data™). The
Receiving Party agrees: (i) to take the same security precautions to protect against
disclosure or unauthorized use of such Proprietary Information that the party takes with its
own proprietary information, but in no event will the Receiving Party apply less than
reasonable precautions to protect such Proprietary Information, and {ii} not to use (except
in performance of the Services or as otherwise permitted herein) or divulge to any third
person any such Proprietary Information. Flock's use of the Proprietary Information may
include processing the Proprietary Information to send Customer alerts, such as whenh a
car exits Customer's nelghborhood, or to analyze the data collected to identify motion or
other events. The Disclosing Party agrees that the foregoing shall not apply with respect
to any information that the Receiving Party can document (a) is or becomes generally
available to the public, or (b} was in its possession or known by it prior to receipt from the
Disclosing Party, or (c) was rightfully disclosed to it without restriction by a third party, or
{d} was independently developed without use of any Proprietary Information of the
Disclosing Party. Nothing in this Agreement will prevent the Receiving Party from

Title
Department
Version
Release Date

: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online}

. Legal

0 1.0

1 3/31/2021 Page 29 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement

7N between Axon and Agency (Online)
disclosing the Proprietary Information pursuant to any judicial or governmental order,
provided that the Receiving Party gives the Disclosing Party reasonable prior notice of such
disclosure to contest such order. For clarity, Flock may access, use, preserve and/or
disclose the Footage to law enforcement authorities, government officials, and/or third
parties, if legally required to do so or if Flock has a good faith belief that such access, use,
preservation or disclosure is reasonably necessary to: (a) comply with a legal process or
request; (b) enforce this Agreement, including investigation of any potential violation
thereof; (¢) detect, prevent or otherwise address security, fraud or technical issues; or {d)
protect the rights, property or safety of Flock, its users, a third party, or the public as
required or permitted by law, including respond to an emergency situation. In the event
Customer requests Flock to enable law enforcement monitoring against law enforcement
hotlists, Customer hereby expressly grants Flock a non-exclusive, worldwide, perpetual,
royalty-free right and license {during and after the term hereof) to disclose the Customer
Data (inclusive of any Footage and Footage search access) to enable law enforcement
monitoring against law enforcement hotlists. Flock may store deleted Footage in order to
comply with certain legal obligations but such retained Footage will not be retrievable
without a valid court order, subject to Section 9.1 below.

5 RESERVED.
6 RESERVED.
7 Remedy:; Warranty: and Disclaimer.
7.1 Remedy. Upon a malfunction or failure of Hardware or Embedded Software {a “Defect"),

Customer must first make commercially reasonable efforts to address the problem by
contacting Flock’s technical support as described in Section 2.9 above. If such efforts do
not correct the Defect, Flock shall, or shall instruct one of its contractors to, in its sole
discretion, repair or replace the Hardware or Embedded Software suffering from the Defect.
Flock reserves the right in their sole discretion to refuse or delay replacement or its choice
of remedy for a Defect until after it has inspected and tested the affected Unit; provided
that such inspection and test shall occur within seventy-lwo (72} hours after Customer
notifies the Flock of a Defect. In the event of a Defect, Flock will repair or replace the
defective Unit at no additional cost. In the event that a Unit is lost, stolen, or damaged,
Flock agrees to replace the Unit at a fee according to the then-current Reinstall Policy
(https:/iwww flocksafety.com/reinstall-fee-schedule). Customer shall not be required to
replace subsequently lost, damaged or stolen Units, however, Customer understands and
agrees that functionality, including Footage, will be materially affected due to such
subsequently lost, damaged or stolen units and that Flock will have no liability to Customer
regarding such affected functionality nor shall the Usage Fee or Implementation Fees owed
be impacted.

7.2 Exclusions. Flock will not provide the remedy described in Section 7.1 above if any of the
following exclusions apply: {a) misuse of the Hardware or Embedded Software in any
manner, including operation of the Hardware or Embedded Software in any way that does
not strictly comply with any applicable specifications, documentation, or other restrictions
on use provided by Flock; (b) damage, alteration, or modification of the Hardware or
Embedded Software in any way, or {c} combination of the Hardware or Embedded
Software with software, hardware or other technology that was not expressly authorized
by Flock.

7.3 Warranty. Flock shall use reasonable efforts consistent with prevailing industry standards
to maintain the Services in a manner which minimizes errors and interruptions in the Flock
Services. Flock Services may be temporarily unavailable for scheduled maintenance or
for unscheduled emergency maintenance, either by Flock or by third-party providers, or
because of other causes beyond Flock’s reascnable control, but Flock shall use reasonable
efforts to provide advance notice in writing or by e-mail of any scheduled service disruption.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 30 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
between Axon and Agency {Online)

Disclaimer. THE REMEDY DESCRIBED IN SECTION 7.1 ABOVE 1S CUSTOMER'S
SOLE REMEDY, AND FLOCK’'S SOLE LIABILITY, WITH RESPECT TO DEFECTIVE
HARDWARE AND/OR EMBEDDED SOFTWARE. THE FLOCK DOES NOT WARRANT
THAT THE FLOCK SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE; NOR
DOES IT MAKE ANY WARRANTY AS TO THE RESULTS THAT MAY BE OBTAINED
FROM USE OF THE FLOCK SERVICES. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN
THIS SECTION, THE FLOCK SERVICES AND INSTALLATION SERVICES ARE
PROVIDED “AS IS" AND FLOCK DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR
iIMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NON-
INFRINGEMENT.

7.5 Force Majeure. Flock Safety is not responsible nor liable for any delays or failures in
performance from any cause beyond its control, including, but not limited to acts of God,
changes to law or regulations, embargoes, war, terrorist acts, riots, fires, earthquakes,
floods, power blackouts, strikes, weather conditions or acts of hackers, internet service
providers or any other third party or acts or omissions of Customer or any Authorized End
User.

B Limitation of Liability and Indemnity.
8.1 Limitation of Liability. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY, FLOCK

AND ITS SUPPLIERS (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ALL HARDWARE AND
TECHNOLOGY SUPPLIERS), OFFICERS, AFFILIATES, REPRESENTATIVES,
CONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE WITH
RESPECT TO ANY SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS AGREEMENT OR TERMS AND
CONDITIONS RELATED THERETO UNDER ANY CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT
LIABILITY, PRODUCT LIABILITY, OCR OTHER THEORY: (A) FOR ERROR OR
INTERRUPTION OF USE OR FOR LOSS OR INACCURACY, INCOMPLETENESS CR
CORRUPTION OF DATA OR FOOTAGE OR COST OF PROCUREMENT OF
SUBSTITUTE GOODS, SERVICES OR TECHNOLOGY OR LOSS OF BUSINESS; (B)
FOR ANY INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES; (C) FOR ANY MATTER BEYOND FLOCK'S ACTUAL KNOWLEDGE OR
REASONABLE CONTROL INCLUDING REPEAT CRIMINAL ACTIVITY OR INABILITY
TO CAPTURE FOOTAGE OR IDENTIFY AND/OR CORRELATE A LICENSE PLATE
WITH THE FBI DATABASE; (D) FOR ANY PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF PROPRIETARY
INFORMATION MADE IN GOOD FAITH; OR (E) FOR ANY AMOUNTS THAT,
TOGETHER WITH AMOUNTS ASSQCIATED WITH ALL OTHER CLAIMS, EXCEED THE
FEES PAID AND/OR PAYABLE BY CUSTOMER TO FLOCK FOR THE FLOCK
SERVICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IN THE TWELVE (12) MONTHS PRIOR TO THE
ACT THAT GAVE RISE TO THE LIABILITY, IN EACH CASE, WHETHER OR NOT FLOCK
HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. IN THE EVENT OF
AN EMERGENCY, CUSTOMER SHOULD CONTACT 911 AND SHOULD NOT RELY ON
THE FLOCK SERVICES.

8.2 Responsibility. Each Party to this Agreement shall assume the responsibility and liability
for the acts and omissions of its own employees, deputies, officers, or agents, in connection
with the performance of their official duties under this Agreement. Each Party to this
Agreement shall be liable (if at all) only for the torts of its own officers, agents, or employees
that occur within the scope of their official duties. Customer will not pursue any claims or
actions against Flock’s suppliers.

8.3  Indemnity. Customer hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Flock against any
damages, losses, liabilities, setflements and expenses (including without limitation costs
and attorneys’ fees) in connection with any claim or action that arises from an alleged
violation of Section 3.1, a breach of this Agreement, Customer's sharing of any data in
cennection with the Flock system, Flock employees or agent or Non-Customer End Users,

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 31 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

9.1

or otherwise from Customer's use of the Flock Services, Hardware and any Software,
including any claim that such actions violate any applicable law or third party right.
Although Flock has no obligation to monitor Customer’s use of the Flock Services, Flock
may do so and may prohibit any use of the Flock Services it believes may be (or alleged
to be) in violation of the Section 3.2 or this Agreement.

Record Retenticn.

Data Preservation. The Customer agrees to store Customer Data and Non-Customer End
User Data in compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, regulations,
policies and ordinances and their associated record retention schedules. As part of
Customer's consideration for paid access and no-fee access to the Flock System, to the
extent that Flock is required by local, state or federal law to store the Customer Data or the
Non-Customer End User Data, Customer agrees to preserve and securely store this data
on Flock's behalf so that Flock can delete the data from its servers and, should Flock be
legally compelled by judicial or government order, Flock may retrieve the data from
Customer upon demand, provided, however, if Flock receives a disclosure request for
Customer Data, Flock will give Customer notice, unless legally prehibited from doing so, to
allow Customer to file an objection with the court or administrative body.

10 Miscellaneous.

10.1

10.2

Publicity. Flock has the right to reference and use Customer’'s name and trademarks and
disclose the nature of the Flock Services provided hereunder in each case in business and
development and marketing efforts, including without limitation on Flock’s website,

Export. Custormner may not remove or export from the United States or allow the export or
re-export of the Flock IP or anything related thereto, or any direct product thereof in
violation of any restrictions, laws or regulations of the United States Department of
Commerce, the United States Department of Treasury Office of Foreign Assets Control, or
any other United States or foreign Customer or authority. As defined in FAR section 2.101,
the Flock Services, the Hardware, the Embedded Software and Documentation are
“commercial items” and according to DFAR section 252.2277014(a)(1} and (5) are desmed
to be ‘“commercial computer software” and “commercial computer software
documentation.” Consistent with DFAR section 227.7202 and FAR section 12.212, any
use, modification, reproduction, release, performance, display, or disclosure of such
commercial software or commercial software documentation by the U.S. Government will
be governed solely by the terms of this Agreement and will be prohibited except to the
extent expressly permitted by the terms of this Agreement.

Title

: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)

Department: Legal

Version
Release Date

1 1.0
:3/31/2021 Page 32 of 47



1\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
24 between Axon and Agency (Online)

Skydio Terms of Use Appendix
1 Definitions.

"Advanced Software” means optional capabilities, functions or other features of the Onboard
Software that may be specified and identified as such in the Quote. Skydio's characterization of
capabilities, functions or other features as Advanced Software shall be dispositive. Notwithstanding
any other provision herein, a software feature that is locked or otherwise disabled unless or until
an Advanced Software Package is purchased for such software feature shali be deemed an
Advanced Software. Advanced Software does not include Mobile Apps.

"Advanced Softwars Package” means an optional, additional-charge license right, specified in
the Quote, pursuant to which Skydio shall unlock Advanced Software to permit Customer to use
Advanced Software (and in some cases the Skydio Hardware that it controls).

“Authorized Devices” are (a) mobile devices that Customer owns or is authorized to use, and (b)
controllers purchased by Customer hereunder, which in each case (a) and (b) are used by
Customer to operate the Skydio Hardware purchased by Customer hereunder.

‘Base Software” means capabilities, functions or other features of the Onboard Software that are
both: (a) standard capabilities, functions or other features available and activated on Skydio's base
consumer version of Skydio Hardware, and {b) available for use without purchase of Advanced
Software Package. Base Software may be specified and identified as standard features in the
Quote. Any capability, function, or feature that is not a Base Software shall be deemed an Advanced
Software.

“Customer” means the customer procuring Skydio Products or services.

“Error" means a critical error in the Advanced Software that causes the Advanced Software to be
inoperable,

“Skydic License Term” means with respect to an Advanced Software Package, the term of that
Advanced Scoftware Package, including (if applicable) the initial specified term and any renewal
terms.

“Mobile Apps” means software applications (in executable form only), as may be specified on the
Quote, that are specifically intended for use on a mobile device (and any Updates thereto).

“Onboard Scftware” means software, in executable format only, embedded into or otherwise pre-
installed on Skydio Hardware as supplied by Skydio, and any Updates thereto, whether or not
embedded on read only memory. Onboard Software includes Base Software and Advanced
Software.

“Skydio Privacy Policy” means Skydio’s privacy policy located at https:/fiwww.skydio.com/privacy-
policy and as it may be amended from time to time by Skydio in its sole discretion.

"Product” means Skydio Hardware and Software, as provided by Skydio pursuant to this
Agreement and any applicable Quote.

"Skydio Hardware" means drones and other unmanned aircraft, controllers, docks, accessories
and related hardware that Customer purchases from Skydio or its distributors or resellers.

“Skydio Software” means Onboard Software and Mobile Apps.

“‘Support Term” means, for Base Software, the support term specified in the Quote, and, for each
Advanced Software Package, the applicable Skydio License Term for such Advanced Software

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Cnline)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 33 of 47



}\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
7 Ny between Axon and Agency (Online)

Package purchased hereunder.

“Updates” means any upgrades, updates, maintenance releases, bug fixes or modified versions of
Skydio Software that Skydio may release from time to time.

2 License. Subject to and in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and further
conditioned upon Customer’'s payment of all Fees, Skydio grants to Customer:

21 a limited, perpetual, non-exclusive, non-transferable (except as provided in Section 5 below
titted “Transferability”) right and license to use the Base Software solely on Skydio
Hardware;

2.2 a limited, perpetual, non-exclusive, non-transferable right and license to download, install,
execute and use Mobile Apps on Authorized Devices solely to operate Skydic Hardware in
accordance with this Agreement;

2.3 if Customer purchases an Advanced Software Package for the use of an Advanced
Software, as specified in the Quote, a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable right and
license, during the Skydio License Term of the Advanced Software Package, to use the
Advanced Software on Skydio Hardware that Customer purchases from Skydio solely to
operate the Skydio Hardware in accordance with this Agreement ("Advanced Software
License”); and

2.4 a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable right and license to install solely on Skydic
Hardware any Updates to the Onboard Software, if and when provided by Skydio.

3 Additional License Terms. Additional License Terms. The license rights of Section 2 are limited
to the United States, Canada and Japan.
3.1 Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Quote, the Advanced Software License is

granted on a per-unit basis and it may only be exercised with respect to the specific units
of Skydio Hardware identified on the applicable Quote cr, if the Quote does not specify
such units, then with respect to no more than the total number of Skydio Hardware units
authorized on the Quote, or if such total number of units is not specified on the Quote, then
only with respect to one (1) single Skydio Hardware unit (“Authorized Units").

3.2 Rights under the Advanced Software License are not transferable between Authorized
Units. When an Advanced Software License is exercised on a specific Authorized Unit (by
unlocking, activating, accessing or using the Advanced Software on that Authorized Unit),
such Advanced Software License, or any rights thereof, cannot be transferred to a different
unit of Skydio Hardware, except: (i) if Skydio replaces an Authorized Unit pursuant to a
warranty claim, Skydio shall transfer to the replacement Authorized Unit, the Advanced
Software License of the inoperable unit that is being replaced, and (ii) if a particular
Authorized Unit is rendered permanently inoperable, Skydio shall, upon Customer’s
request, transfer the Advanced Software License rights to a replacement Authorized Unit,
provided, however, that Skydio may condition such transfer on Customer retumning to
Skydic the remnants of the inoperable unit or other evidence of its inoperability.

4 Limitations and Restrictions. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the
foregoing license grant excludes any right to, and Customer shall not {and shall not permit others
to) do any of the following with respect to the Skydio Software: (i) license, sublicense, sell, resell,
rent, lease, transfer, distribute, time share, operate as a service bureau, or otherwise make any of
it available for access by third parties; (i) disassemble, reverse engineer or decompile it; {iii} copy,
create derivative works based on or otherwise modify it; {iv}) remove or modify a copyright,
trademark, logo or other proprietary rights notice or brand labeling in it; (v) use it to reproduce,
distribute, display, transmit, or use material protected by copyright or other intellectual property
right (including the rights of publicity or privacy) without first obtaining the permission of the owner;
(vi} use it to create, use, send, store or run viruses or other harmful computer code, files, scripts,
agents or other programs or otherwise engage, in a malicious act or disrupt its security, integrity or
operation; {vii) install, execute or otherwise reproduce Onboard Software on any device other than
the Skydio Hardware on which Skydio ariginally installed the Onboard Software; (viii) install any
Skydio Software on any type of device not approved by Skydio; {ix} disable or otherwise circumvent

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency {Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 34 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

10

11

any technological measures in Skydio Software to limit its installation, use or access; (x} unlock,
activate, access or use an Advanced Software on any device other than as permitted under an
Advanced Software Package purchased by Customer; and (xi) publish or release any
benchmarking or performance data applicable to the Skydio Software.

Transferability. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Customer may transfer the
Base Software, including any relevant Base Software license rights, only on a permanent basis and
as part of the sale or transfer of the Skydio Hardware on which the Base Software is loaded,
provided that Customer retains no copies of any version of the Skydio Software. With the exception
of the Base Software, Customer may not transfer any other Skydio Software or other Skydio
Software license rights granted herein to another person or entity without the express written
permission of Skydio, unless allowed by applicable law stating that transfer may not be restricted.

Evaluation License. Skydio may make certain Skydio Software available in object code form to
end users only for evaluation, training or other limited non-commercial purposes without charging
a Fee ("Evaluation License"). Where Skydio has provided an Evaluation License, all of the terms
of this Agreement shall apply except that (i} Customer's license rights shall be limited to the
evaluation of that Skydio Software, (i) Customer shall not be required to pay a Fee for the
evaluation of that Skydio Software and (i) Skydio shall have the right to revoke the license to the
Skydio Software at any time and for any reason.

Updates. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply to all Updates or additional
copies of the Skydio Software. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including
Customer’s timely payment of all Fees due and owed to Skydio, Skydio will provide or make
available to Customer, during the Support Term, Updates for Base Software, Mobile Apps and any
Advanced Software that was enabled under the purchased Advanced Software Package on the
Authorized Units. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Customer has no license
or right to use any Updates to the Advanced Software unless Customer holds a valid license to the
Advanced Software and has paid any required Fees for such Advanced Software. Updates are
solely provided on a “when-and-if-available” basis and as made generally available by Skydio to its
customers. Customer shall promptly install any Updates that Skydio designates as required for the
continued safe operation of Skydio Hardware or operation of any Advanced Software.

Proprietary Notices. Customer agrees to maintain and reproduce all copyright and other
proprietary notices on all copies, in any form, of the Skydio Software in the same form and manner
that such copyright and other proprietary notices are included on the Skydio Software.

Intellectual Property. Customer agrees that all worldwide patent, copyright and other intellectual
property rights in the Product, and all copies of the Software however made (including copies pre-
installed on the Skydio Hardware purchased by Customer) are the exclusive property of Skydio
and its suppliers. All Skydio Software is licensed to Customer, not sold. All rights not expressly
granted to Customer in this Agreement are reserved by Skydic and its suppliers. There are no
implied licenses under this Agreement.

Fees. Skydio reserves the right to suspend and/or terminate access to the Skydio Software if any
undisputed fees for Skydio Hardware or Software are past due. Such suspension or termination
shall not relieve Gustomer from its obligation to pay all undisputed amounts.

Third Party Software and Open Source Software. The Skydic Software may include third party
software, and open source software ("0SS”), and such software is provided under separate license
terms.

111 To the extent the licenses for any 0SS requires Skydio to make available to Customer the
corresponding source code included in the Skydio Software, Customer may obtain a copy
of the applicable OSS source code by sending a written request to legal@skydio.com. The
0SS license terms shall take precedence over this Agreement to the extent that this
Agreement imposes greater restrictions on Customer than the applicable 0SS license

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement betweén Axon and Agency {(Onling)

Department: Legal

Version: 1.0

Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 35 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
24 between Axon and Agency (Online)

12

13

14

11.2

terms. Customer acknowledges receipt of notices for the Open Source Components for the
initial delivery of the Skydio Software.

The use of third party software or applications, or the integration of such software or
applications with the Skydio Software, (collectively, “Third Party Applications”), may
result in Customer data or information being transferred to a third party. Skydio is not
responsible for, and Customer agrees to hold Skydio harmless, for any data or information
transferred to third parties in connection with your use of Third Party Applications.

Commercial ltem. The Skydio Software and associated documentation are “commercial items”
as defined at FAR 2.101 and according to DFAR section 252.2277014(a)(1) and (5) are deemed
to be “commercial computer software” and “commercial computer software documentation.”
Consistent with DFAR section 227.7202 and FAR section 12.212, any use, madification,
reproduction, release, performance, display, or disclosure of such commercial software or
commercial software documentation by the U.S. Government will be governed solely by the terms
of this Agreement and will be prohibited except to the extent expressly permitted by the terms of
this Agreement.

Term and Termination. This Agreement is effective upon Skydio Software purchase, activation or
download, as applicable, and shall continue until terminated.

131

13.2

13.3

Paid License Term. Each Advanced Software Package purchased hereunder shall have
its own Skydio License Term. Each Skydio License Term shall have an initial term for the
time period set forth on the Quote and that the Skydio License Term shall automatically
extend for successive additional one (1) year renewal terms thereafter if any (subject to
payment of the then-current applicable license fees for each such renewal term) unless
either party give notice to the other of its intention not to renew the Skydio License Term
at least thirty (30) days before expiration of the then-current initial or renewal term, as the
case may be (‘Renewal Terms”). If a Skydio License Term is not set forth in the Quote,
each Skydio License Term shall have an initial term that commences upon the date of
provisioning of the Skydio Software and expires one (1) year later; provided, however, that
the Skydio License Term shall automatically extend per the Renewal Terms. Unless Skydio
terminates this Agreement for breach by Customer, the perpetual licenses to use Base
Software shall survive.

Free or Trial License Term. If you have obtained a license to a free version of the Skydio
Software, then your license will continue until terminated in accordance with this
Agreement. If you have obtained a trial license to the Skydio Software, then your license
will continue for such time period as may be specified by Skydio with respect to such trial
(and if no period is specified, for 30 days). Skydio may terminate a trial license at any time
in its sole discretion.

Termination. Skydio may terminate Customer's license rights under this Agreement
immediately without notice if Customer fails to comply with any terms of this Agreement or
Customer fails to make any payment as required hereunder. In no event will termination
relieve Customer of its obligation to pay any fees payable for Skydio Hardware or Software.
Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason, Customer shall
immediately cease using any Skydio Software and must destroy or return to Skydio all
copies of the Skydio Software and associated documentation in its possession or control.
The following sections shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement:
Sections 1, 2(a), 2(b), 2(d), 4, 5 and 7-26.

End of Life. Skydio may discontinue the provision of any Skydio Software, support or Updates in
its sole discretion in accordance with, and any licenses granted herein are subject to, Skydio

Product

End of Life Policy, which is available at https://support.skydio.com/hc/en-

us/articles/360067153714, and is hereby incorporated by reference herein.

Title

. Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)

Department: Legal

Version

Release Date

;1.0
1 3/31/2021 Page 36 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
AN between Axon and Agency (Online)
15 Limited Warranty. The only warranty that Skydio provides with respect to any Skydio products or

services is the written limited warranty statement provided with the products or services or as
otherwise set forth at https://skydio.com/warranty-terms ( “Limited Warranty”).

16 Limitations. Any use of the Skydio Hardware and Software, including any reliance upon or use of
any of the information generated thereby, shall be at Customer’s and its authorized users’ sole risk.
Except as expressly set forth in the Limited Warranty and to the extent permitted by law, the
Products are provided “as is” and “"as available” without warranty of any kind (all of which are hereby
disclaimed), whether express, implied or statutory, including the implied warranties of
merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, or non-infringement. If statutory or implied
warranties cannot be lawfully disclaimed, then such warranties are limited to the duration of the
warranty set forth in the Limited Warranty and by the provisions in this Agreement. Skydio’'s
cumulative liability to any Party for any loss or damage resulting from any claim, demand, or action
arising out of or relating to any Skydio Products or any service will not exceed the amounts paid by
Customer in the 12 months prior to the action giving rise to the liability. Neither Party will be liable
for direct, special, indirect, incidental, punitive or consequential damages, however caused,
whether for breach of warranty or contract, negligence, strict liability, tort or any other legal theory.

17 Safety and Compliance. Customer and Customer's authorized users agree to use the Skydio
Hardware only in a manner that complies with all laws. Customer shall ensure that it and its
authorized users operate product in accordance with the information and warnings set forth at
hitps:/fwww.skydio.com/safety (the “Safety and Operating Guide™). Customer acknowledges that
improper operation of the unmanned aircraft systems may cause injury to persons or property.
Customer shall at all times comply with all applicable local, state, national, and international laws
and regulations related to the operation of unmanned aircraft systems in any territory of operation,
including any applicable laws and orders with regard to privacy, pilot licensure, operating within
visual line of sight (unless the Customer has received proper approval from a civil aviation authority
waiving such limitation), detecting and avoiding other aircraft, and airspace restrictions (such as
temporary flight restrictions issued by Federal Aviation Administration or other appropriate
government agencies). Customer shall obtain and maintain all necessary licenses, consent, and
authorizations of any kind necessary to operate unmanned aircraft systems.

18 Feedback. If Customer or Customer’s authorized users send Skydio comments, suggestions,
ideas, materials, notes, drawings, concepts or other information (collectively, “Submissions”),
Customer and Customer’s authorized users (as applicable) grant to Skydio a worldwide, non-
exclusive, perpetual, irrevocable, transferable, sub-licensable, royalty-free license to use, copy,
modify, publicly display, publicly perform, distribute and otherwise exploit the Submissions. None
of the Submissions shall be subject to any abligation of confidentiality on Skydio's part, and Skydio
shall not be liable for any use or disclosure of any Submissions.

19 Privacy. Skydioc shall, in providing the Products, comply with Skydio Privacy Policy_to the extent
that Customer provides Skydio with personally identifiable information.

20 Mapbox Terms. The Mobile App uses features and content provided by Mapbox, such as maps
and locations on a map. Use of any such Mapbox features and content is subject to the then-current
version of Mapbox's terms and privacy policy, which c¢an be found at
https://www.mapbox.com/legalltos/ , including the Mapbox Government Terms of Service, which
can be found at https://www.mapbox.com/legal/usg-tos, and you hereby agree to comply with such
terms. You can opt out of location telemetry reporting pursuant to such terms,

21 Services. In accordance with this Agreement, so long as Customer timely pays all amounts owed
hereunder, Skydio shall render to Customer, during the applicable Skydio License Term of each
Advanced Software Package purchased herunder, the support services consisting of: (a) providing
Customer’s named Administrators (defined below) with consultation in English, via telephone and
email, during Skydio’s normal business hours (9AM to 5PM PST) to assist in using the Advanced

Software licensed under the Advanced Software Package; and (b) making reasonable efforts to
Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 37 of 47




‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
24 between Axon and Agency (Online)

22

23

24

25

26

Skydio, Inc.

correct any critical error in the Advanced Software that causes the Advanced Software to be
inoperable (“Error”), all in accordance with Skydio’s support policies published on its Website, as
updated from time to time. Errors do not include, and Skydio has no obligation to correct,
malfunctions caused in whole or in part by modification of Software, the operation of third-party
products or the integration of Software with or into third-party products, improper installation of the
Advanced Software or other Software, or the use of Software other than in accordance with the
applicable specifications provided by Skydio. Support is only available for the current and single
prior major release of Advanced Software. No other services are included under this Agreement.

Administrators. Customer shall designate up to three (3) of its employees to administer the
Services on its behalf and serve as points of contact in communicating with us, as set forth in the
applicable Confirmation or as otherwise agreed by the parties in writing (“Administrators”). If a
person named as an Administrator leaves Customer's employ, Customer may designate another
one of its employees to serve as Administrator to replace the departing employee.

Indemnification. Skydio will indemnify Customer's officers, directors, and employees {(“Customer
Indemnitees”) against all claims, demands, losses, and reasonable expenses arising out of a third-
party claim against an Customer Indemnitee resulting from any negligent act, error or omission, or
willful misconduct by Skydio under this Agreement, except to the extent of Customer's negligence
or willful misconduct, or claims under workers compensation.

IP_Indemnification. Skydio will indemnify Customer Indemnitees against all claims, losses, and
reasonable expenses from any third-party claim alleging that the use of Skydio Products or services
infringes or misappropriates the third-party’s intellectual property rights. Customer must promptly
provide Skydio with written notice of such claim, tender to Skydio the defense or settlement of such
claim at Skydio's expense and cooperate fully with Skydio in the defense or settlement of such
claim. Skydio’s IP indemnification obligations do not apply to claims based on (a) modification of
Skydio Products or services by Customer or a third-party not approved by Skydio; (b) use of Skydio
Products and services in combination with hardware or services not approved by Skydio; (c) use
of Skydio Products and services other than as permitted in this Agreement; or (d) use of Skydio
Software that is not the most current release provided by Skydio.

Customer Responsibilities. Customer is responsible for (a) Customer’s use of Skydio Products;
{b) breach of this Agreement or violation of applicable law by Customer or a Customer's authorized
end user; and (c) a dispute between Customer and a third-party over Customer's use of Skydio
Products.

Export Sales and Export Controls. Customer acknowledges that the Skydio Products, services
and technology are subject to export controls under the laws and regulations of the United States
(U.S.). Customer shall comply with such laws and regulations governing use, export, re-export, and
transfer of Skydio Products, services and technology and shall obtain all required U.S. and local
authorizations, permits, or licenses. Skydio and Customer each agree to provide the other such
information and assistance as may reasonably be required by the other in connection with securing
such authorizations and licenses, and to take timely action to obtain all required supporting
documentation.

Copyright © 2021 Skydio, Inc.

114 Hazel Ave.,
Redwood City, CA 94061

legal@skydio.com

SKYDIO is a trademark and service mark of Skydio, Inc. Visit Skydio's Web Site al www.skydio.com

Axon Commander™ Software Appendix

License, Axon owns all executable instructions, images, icons, sound, and text in Commander. All
rights are reserved to Axon. Axon grants a non-exclusive, royalty-free, worldwide right and license

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)

Department: Legal
Version: 1.0

Release

Date: 3/31/2021 Page 38 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

to use Commander. “Use” means storing, loading, installing, or executing Commander exclusively
for data communication with an Axon Device. Agency may use Commander in a networked
environment on computers other than the computer it installs Commander on, so long as each
execution of Commander is for data communication with an Axon Device. Agency may make copies
of Commander for archival purposes only. Agency shall retain all copyright, trademark, and
proprietary notices in Commander on all copies or adaptations.

6 Term. The Quote will detail the duration of the Commander license, as well as any maintenance.
The term will begin upon installation of Commander by Axon.

7 License Restrictions. All licenses will immediately terminate if Agency does not comply with any
term of this Agreement. Agency may not use Commander for any purpose other than as expressly
permitted by this Agreement. Agency may not:

7.1 modify, tamper with, repair, or otherwise create derivative works of Commander;

7.2 reverse engineer, disassemble, or decompile Commander or apply any process to derive
the source code of Commander, or allow others to do the same;

7.3 access or use Commander to avoid incurring fees or exceeding usage limits or quotas;

7.4 copy Commander in whole or part, except as expressly permitted in this Agreement;

7.5 use trade secret information contained in Commander;

7.6 resell, rent, loan or sublicense Commander;

7.7 access Commander to huild a competitive device or service or copy any features,
functions, or graphics of Commander; or

7.8 remove, alter, or obscure any confidentiality or proprietary rights notices (including
copyright and trademark notices) of Axon or Axon's licensors on or within Commander or
any copies of Commander.

8 Support. Axon may make available updates and error corrections (“Updates”) to Commander.
Axon will provide Updates electronically via the Internet or media as determined by Axon. Agency
is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate access to the Internet to receive Updates.
Agency is responsible for maintaining the computer equipment necessary to use Commander.
Axon may provide technical support of a prior release/version of Commander for 6 months from
when Axon made the subsequent release/version available.

9 Termination. Axon may terminate Agency’s license immediately for Agency’s failure to comply with
any of the terms in this Agreement. Upon termination, Axon may disable Agency's right to login to
Axon Commander.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency {Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 39 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
7 N between Axon and Agency (Online)

Axon Application Programming Interface Appendix

1 Definitions.
“API Client" means the software that acts as the interface between Agency’s computer and the
server, which is already developed or o he developed by Agency.

“API Interface" means software implemented by Agency to configure Agency’s independent API
Client Software to operate in conjunction with the APt Service for Agency's authorized Use.

“Axon Evidence Partner API, APl or AXON API" (collectively “API Service”} means Axon's API
which provides a programmatic means to access data in Agency's Axon Evidence account or
integrate Agency’s Axon Evidence account with other systems.

“Use” means any operation on Agency's data enabled by the supported API functionality.

2 Purpose and License.

21 Agency may use APl Service and data made available through APl Service, in connection
with an API Client developed by Agency. Axon may moniter Agency's use of APl Service
to ensure quality, improve Axon devices and services, and verify compliance with this
Agreement. Agency agrees to not interfere with such monitoring or obscure from Axon
Agency’s use of AP] Service. Agency will not use AP| Service for commercial use.

2.2 Axon grants Agency a non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-sublicensable, worldwide,
revocable right and license during the Term to use AP Service, solely for Agency’s Use in
connection with Agency’s APJ Client,

2.3 Axon reserves the right to set limitations on Agency’s use of the API Service, such as a
quota on operations, to ensure stability and availability of Axon’s APIl. Axon will use
reasonable efforts to accommodate use beyond the designated limits.

3 Configuration. Agency will work independently to configure Agency’s API Client with AP| Service
for Agency's applicable Use. Agency will be required to provide certain information (such as
identification or contact details) as part of the registration. Registration informatfon provided to Axon
must be accurate. Agency will inform Axon promptly of any updates. Upon Agency's registration,
Axon will provide documentation gutlining API Service information,

4 Agency Responsibilities. When using APl Service, Agency and its end users may not:
4.1 use API Service in any way other than as expressly permitted under this Agreement;
4.2 use in any way that results in, or could result in, any security breach to Axon;

4.3 perform an action with the intent of introducing any viruses, worms, defect, Trojan horses,
malware, or any items of a destructive nature to Axon Devices and Services;

4.4 interfere with, modify, disrupt or disable features or functionality of APl Service or the
servers or networks providing AP| Service;

4.5 reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble, or translate or attempt to extract the source
code from APl Service or any related software;

4.6 create an API Interface that functions substantially the same as API Service and offer it
for use by third parties;

4.7 provide use of AP| Service on a service bureau, rental or managed services basis or permit
other individuals or entities to create links to AP| Service;

4.8 frame or mirror APl Service on any other server, or wireless or Internet-based device;

4.9 make available to a third-party, any token, key, password or other login credentials to API
Setrvice;

4.10 take any action or inaction resulting in illegal, unauthorized or improper purposes; or
disclose Axon's APl manual.

5 API Content. All content related to AP| Service, other than Agency Content or Agency’s API Client
content, is considered Axon’s APl Content, including:

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Onfine)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 40 of 47



1\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

5.1
5.2

5.3
54

the design, structure and naming of AP| Service fields in all responses and requests;

the resources available within APl Service for which Agency takes actions on, such as
evidence, cases, users, or reports; and

the structure of and relationship of APl Service resources; and

the design of API Service, in any part or as a whole.

Prohibitions on APl Content. Neither Agency nor its end users will use APl content returned from

the API Interface to:

6.1

6.2

6.3
6.4

scrape, build databases, or otherwise create permanent copies of such content, or keep
cached copies longer than permitted by the cache header;

copy, translate, modify, create a derivative work of, sell, lease, lend, convey, distribute,
publicly display, or sublicense to any third-party;

misrepresent the source or awnership; or

remove, alter, or obscure any confidentiality or proprietary rights notices (including
copyright and trademark notices).

APl Updates. Axon may update or modify the AP} Service from time to time ("API Update”).

Agency is required to implement and use the mast current version of APl Service and to make any
applicable changes to Agency's API Client required as a result of such APl Update. APl Updates
may adversely affect how Agency's AP Client access or communicate with API Service or the API
Interface. Each API Client must contain means for Agency to update API Client to the most current
version of APl Service. Axon will provide support for 1 year following the release of an APl Update
for all depreciated APl Service versions.

Title
Department
Versian
Release Date

: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)

: Legal

;1.0

1 3/31/2021 Page 41 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2A between Axon and Agency (Online)

Advanced User Management Appendix

1 Scope. Advanced User Management allows Agency to (a) utilize bulk user creation and
management, (b} automate user creation and management through System for Cross-domain
Identity Management (“SCIM"), and (c) automate group creation and management through SCIM.

2 Advanced User Management Configuration. Agency will work independently to configure
Agency's Advanced User Management for Agency’s applicable Use. Upon request, Axon will
provide general guidance to Agency, including documentation that details the setup and
configuration process.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 42 of 47



l\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

Axon Channel Services Appendix

1 Definitions.
“Axon Digital Evidence Management System” means Axon Evidence or Axon Commander, as
specified in the attached Channel Services Statement of Work.

“Active Channel” means a third-party system that is continuously communicating with an Axon
Digital Evidence Management System.

“Inactive Channel” means a third-party system that will have a one-time communication to an Axon
Digital Evidence Management System.

2 Scope. Agency currently has a third-party system or data repository from which Agency desires to
share data with Axon Digital Evidence Management. Axon will facilitate the transfer of Agency’s
third-party data into an Axon Digital Evidence Management System or the transfer of Agency data
out of an Axon Digital Evidence Management System as defined in the Channe! Services
Statement of Work (“Channel Services SOW"). Channel Services will not delete any Agency
Content. Agency is responsible for verifying all necessary data is migrated correctly and retained
per Agency policy.

3 Purpose and Use. Agency is responsible for verifying Agency has the right to share data from and
provide access to third-party system as it relates to the Services described in this Appendix and the
Channel Services SOW. For Active Channels, Agency is responsible for any changes to a third-
party system that may affect the functionality of the channel service. Any additional work required
for the continuation of the Service may require additional fees. An Axon Field Engineer may require
access to Agency's network and systems to perform the Services described in the Channel Services
SOW. Agency is responsible for facilitating this access per ail laws and policies applicable to Agency.

4 Project Management. Axon will assign a Project Manager to work closely with Agency's project
manager and project team members and will be responsible for completing the tasks required to
meet all contract deliverables on time and budget.

5 Warranty. Axon warrants that it will perform the Channel Setvices in a good and workmanlike
manner,
6 Monitoring. Axon may monitor Agency's use of Channel Services to ensure quality, improve Axon

devices and services, prepare invoices based on the total amount of data migrated, and verify
compliance with this Agreement. Agency agrees not to interfere with such monitoring or obscure
from Axon Agency’s use of channel services.

7 Agency’s Responsibilities. Axon's successful performance of the Channel Services requires

Agency:

71 Make available its relevant systems for assessment by Axon (including making these
systems available to Axon via remote access);

7.2 Provide access to the building facilities and where Axon is to perform the Channel Services,
subject to safety and security restrictions imposed by the Agency (including providing
security passes or other necessary documentation to Axon representatives performing the
Channel Services permitting them to enter and exit Agency premises with laptop personal
computers and any other materials needed to perform the Channel Services),

7.3 Provide all necessary infrastructure and software information (TCP/IP addresses, node
names, and network configuration) for Axon to provide the Channel Services,

7.4 Ensure all appropriate data backups are performed;

7.5 Provide Axon with remote access to the Agency’s network and third-party systems when
required for Axon to perform the Channel Services;

7.6 Notify Axon of any network or machine maintenance that may impact the performance of

Tide: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 43 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2A between Axon and Agency (Online)

the Channel Services; and

7.7 Ensure the reasonable availability by phone or email of knowledgeable staff, personnel,
system administrators, and operators to provide timely, accurate, complete, and up-to-date
documentation and information to Axon (these contacts are to provide background
information and clarification of information required to perform the Channel Services).

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency {Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 44 of 47



l\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
7 N between Axon and Agency (Online)
VIEVU Data Migration Appendix

1 Scope. Agency currently has legacy data in the VIEVU Solution from which Agency desires to
move to Axon Evidence. Axon will work with Agency to copy legacy data from the VIEVU solution
into Axon Evidence {“Migration”). Before Migration, Agency and Axon will work together to develop
a Statement of Work (“Migration SOW”) to detail all deliverables and responsibilities. The Migration
will require the availability of Agency resources. Such resources will be identified in the SOW. On-
site support during Migration is not required. Upon Agency's request, Axon will provide on-site
support for an additional fee. Any request for on-site support will need to be pre-scheduled and is
subject to Axon's resource availability.

A small amount of unexposed data related to system information will not be migrated from the
VIEVU solution to Axon Evidence. Upon request, some of this data can be manually exported
before Migration and provided to Agency. The Migration SOW will provide further detail.

2 Changes. Axon is only responsible to perform the Services described in this Appendix and Migration
SOW. Any additional services are out of scope. The Parties must document scope changes in a
written and signed change order. Changes may require an equitable adjustment in the charges or
schedule.

3 Project Management. Axon will assign a Project Manager to work closely with Agency's project
manager and project team members and will be responsible for completing the tasks required to
meet all contract deliverables on time and budget.

4 Downtime. There may be downtime during the Migration. The duration of the downtime will depend
on the amount of data that Agency is migrating. Axon will work with Agency to minimize any
downtime. Any VIEVU mobile application will need to be disabled upon Migration.

5 Functionality Changes. Due to device differences between the VIEVU solution and the Axon's
Axon Evidence solution, there may be functionality gaps that will not allow for all migrated data to
be displayed the same way in the user interface after Migration

6 Acceptance. Once the Migration is complete, Axon will notify Agency and an acceptance form.
Agency is responsible for verifying that the scope of the project has been completed and all
necessary data is migrated correctly and retained per Agency policy. Agency will have 90 days to
provide Axon acceptance that the Migration was successful, or Axon will deem the Migration
accepted.,

In the event Agency does not accept the Migration, Agency agrees to notify the Axon within a
reasonable time. Agency also agrees to allow Axon a reasonable time to resolve any issue. In the
event Agency does not provide the Axon written rejection of the Migration during these 90 days,
Agency may be charged for additional monthly storage costs. After Agency provides acceptance of
the Migration, the Axon will delete all data from the VIEVU solution 80 days after the Migration.

7 Post-Migration. After Migration, the VIEVU solution may not be supported and updates may not be
provided. Axon may end of life the VIEVU solution in the future. If Agency elects to maintain data
within the VIEVU solution, Axen will provide Agency 90 days’ notice before ending support for the
VIEVU solution.

8 Warranty. Axon warrants that it will perform the Migration in a good and workmanlike manner.
9 Monitoring. Axon may monitor Agency's use of Migration to ensure quality, improve Axon devices

and services, prepare invoices based on the total amount of data migrated, and verify compliance
with this Agreement. Agency agrees not to interfere with such monitoring or obscure from Axon
Agency's use of Migration.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Onfine)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 45 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2A between Axon and Agency (Online)

Axon Support Engineer Appendix

Axon Support Engineer Payment. Axon will invoice for Axon Support Engineer {(*ASE") services,
as outlined in the Quote, when the Axon Support Engineer commences work on-site at Agency.

Full-Time ASE Scope of Services.

2.1 A Full-Time ASE will work on-site four {4) days per week.

2.2 Agency's Axon sales representative and Axon’s Agency Success team will work with
Agency to define its support needs and ensure the Full-Time ASE has skills to align with
those needs. There may be up to a 6-month waiting period before the Full-Time ASE can
work on-site, depending upon Agency’s needs and availability of a Full-Time ASE.

2.3 The purchase of Full-Time ASE Services includes 2 complimentary Axon Accelerate tickets
per year of the Agreement, so long as the ASE has started work at Agency, and Agency is
current on all payments for the Full-Time ASE Service.

The Full-Time ASE Service options are listed below:
Ongoing System Set-up and Configuration
+  Assisting with assigning cameras and registering docks
»  Maintaining Agency's Axon Evidence account
+  Connecting Agency to "Early Access” programs for new devices
Account Maintenance
+  Conducting on-site training on new features and devices for Agency leadership team(s)
+  Thoroughly documenting issues and workflows and suggesting new workflows to improve the
effectiveness of the Axon program
»  Conducting weekly meetings to cover current issues and program status
Data Analysis
«  Providing on-demand Axon usage data to identify trends and insights for improving daily
workflows
+  Comparing Agency's Axon usage and trends to peers to establish best practices
_ «  Proactively monitoring the health of Axon equipment and coordinating returns when needed
Direct Support
+  Providing on-site, tier 1 and tier 2 technical support for Axon devices
«  Proactively monitoring the health of Axon equipment
«  Creating and monitoring RMAs on-site
«  Providing Axon app support
+  Monitoring and testing new firmware and workflows before they are released to Agency's
production environment
Agency Advocacy
+  Coordinating bi-annual voice of customer meetings with Axon’s Device Management team
+  Recording and tracking Agency feature requests and major bugs

Regional ASE Scope of Services
34 A Regional ASE will work on-site for 3 consecutive days per quarter. Agency must schedule

the on-site days at least 2 weeks in advance. The Regional ASE wili also be available by
phone and email during regular business hours up to 8 hours per week.,

3.2 There may be up to a 6-month waiting period before Axon assigns a Regional ASE to
Agency, depending upon the availability of a Regional ASE.

3.3 The purchase of Regional ASE Services includes 2 complimentary Axon Accelerate tickets
per year of the Agreement, so long as the ASE has started work at Agency and Agency is
current on all payments for the Regional ASE Service.,

The Regional ASE service options are listed below:

Title: Master Services ang Purcnasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)
Department: Legal
Version: 1.0
Release Date: 3/31/2021 Page 46 of 47



‘\ AXO N Master Services and Purchasing Agreement
2 between Axon and Agency (Online)

Account Maintenance

Conducting remote training on new features and devices for Agency's leadership

Thoroughly documenting issues and workflows and suggesting new workflows to improve the
effectiveness of the Axon program

Conducting weekly conference calls to cover current issues and program status

Visiting Agency quarterly {(up to 3 conseculive days} to perform a quarterly business review,
discuss Agency's goals for your Axon program, and continue to ensure a successful
deployment of Axon devices

Direct Support

Providing remote, tier 1 and tier 2 technical support for Axon devices
Creating and monitoring RMAs remotely

Data Analysis

3

Providing quarterly Axon usage data to identify trends and program efficiency opportunities
Comparing an Agency's Axon usage and trends to peers to establish best practices
Proactively monitoring the health of Axon equipment and coordinating returns when needed

Agency Advocacy

Coordinating bi-yearly Voice of Agency meetings with Device Management team
Recording and tracking Agency feature requests and major bugs

Out of Scope Services. The ASE is responsible to perform only the Services described in this
Appendix. Any additional Services discussed or implied that are not defined explicitly in this

Appendix will be considered out of the scope.

ASE Leave Time. The ASE will be allowed up 7 days of sick leave and up to 15 days of vacation
time per each calendar year. The ASE will work with Agency to coordinate any time off and will
provide Agency with at least 2 weeks’ notice before utilizing any vacation days.

Title: Master Services and Purchasing Agreement between Axon and Agency (Online)

Department: Legal

Version: 1.0 .
Page 47 of 47

Release Date: 3/31/2021



Agreement by and between
the
Northeastern Connecticut Council of Governments
and the
Town of Colchester
Regarding

Animal Services

July 1, 2021 — June 30, 2022

This agreement, by and between the Northeastern Connecticut Council of
Governments {hereinafter referred to as “"NECCOG"), representing the towns of
Ashford, Brooklyn, Canterbury, Chaplin, Colchester, Eastford, Hampton, Killingly,

Plainfield, Pomfret, Putnam, Scotland, Sterling, Union, Voluntown and Woodstock and
the Town of Bozrah (hereinafter referred to as “Town"), covers the provision of animal
services as detailed in the following agreement for the period beginning July 1, 2021
and concluding on June 30, 2022,

Section 1  Designation of Animal Control Agent

The Northeastern Connecticut Council of Governments (NECCOG) is hereby designated,
pursuant to Connecticut State Statute, as the appointed agent of the Town of Colchester to
enforce all regulations relating to animal control. NECCOG shall follow the provisions of the
applicable laws and regulations, as they may be amended, in the provision of such animal
control services and in provisions of all other services set forth herein.

Section 2 Services-General

As part of its duties as the designated Animal Control Agent of the Town, NECCOG shall
provide the following general administrative and support services:

A.  NECCOG shall employ, train, and supervise all necessary personnel to perform the services
required by this Agreement.

8. NECCOG shall maintain an Animal Control Office at 125 Putnam Pike, Dayville,
Connecticut. Such office shall be open to the public from 9:00 am. to 2:00 p.m. on
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, and Friday, except for legal holidays. NECCOG
shall provide on-call emergency service 24 hours per day, seven days per week,
throughout the term of this Agreement. The field services provided by NECCOG under this
Agreement shall include but are not limited to the following:

i. Handling of dead, confined, stray, at large, nuisance, sick, injured, or vicious domestic

page 1 of 5



animals;

i. Investigation and enforcement of any cruelty, abandonment, or protective custody
cases in the Town;

i. Provision of veterinary care on an emergency basis for domestic animals;

iv. Handling of neighborhood disputes involving domestic animal complaints; and

v. Investigation of all reported bites, quarantine of biting domestic animals pursuant to
State guidelines; and performing such duties as are necessary on a live biting domestic
animal or its carcass, necessary to prepare and deliver it for rabies testing.

NECCOG shall cooperate with other agencies in delivering domestic animal services to the
Town. It is recognized that other agencies, such as the Connecticut Department of
Agriculture, the Connecticut Humane Society, the Northeast District Department of Health,
and State Police, also have animal control and welfare responsibilities and interests. The
Animal Services Program shall be cognizant of such overlapping jurisdiction, shall avoid
duplication of services, and where appropriate, shall provide for coordination, referral and
assistance to and among such agencies,

NECCOG shall train its employees concerning all applicable State and Town regulations
concerning animal control as well as in regard to the rules, of evidence, rules concerning
search and seizure, and in techniques for dealing competently, courteously, and firmly
with the general public and with the animals in the Region’s control.

NECCOG shall provide such facilities, equipment, and inventory of supplies as are
necessary to fully provide the services required herein. NECCOG shall maintain all field
equipment necessary for its animal control functions in good repair and maintain all
current licenses and registrations required by State law.

NECCOG shall outfit its field personnel in neat, standardized uniforms which clearly identify
such personnel and the NECCOG Animal Control Program.

NECCOG shall respond to individual citizen requests for information concerning animal
control and animal welfare and shall make its staff available for public speaking events at
community meetings, organizations, public hearings, scheols, and to the media. NECCOG
shall further provide visual aids in the form of brochures, handouts, and other appropriate
materials.

NECCOG staff shall appear in Court in connection with any criminal enforcement or civil
hearing, and for all other hearings on animal control matters, upon notification thereof by
the Town.

Section 3  Consideration

In consideration for NECCOG's performance of the duties listed herein, the Town will pay
NECCOG an amount based on the most recent population of the Town as determined by

page 2 of 5



the Connecticut Department of Public Health 15,809 (2019} multiplied by Three Dollars and
fifteen cents ($3.15) per capita per year equals $49,798.35,

B. NECCOG shall be entitled to retain fees generated by the program which are not
earmarked to the State.

C. Additionally, if there is a confiscation of animals that require special housing {for example
livestock, horses, etc,) or are in large quantities that require other than ordinary
veterinarian care - costs for such services (which will be discussed and agreed in advance
prior to the incurring such costs) will be bourn by the Town.

Section 4 Accountability

A, NECCOG shall provide the Town with guarterly reports concerning NECCOG's performance
under this Agreement; such reports to, at minimum, reflect the following information:

i. The number of animals sheltered;
il. The number of adoptions;
ii. The number of individuals receiving Notices of Violation/abatements; and,

iv. The number of investigations.

Section 5 Disposition of Assets/Equipment Upon Termination/ Expiration

Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, NECCOG shall retain the vehicles,
equipment, and other capital items used to provide the services set out herein. In the event
that the Towns involved in the Regional Animal Control Program shall discontinue its animal
control activities at the time this Agreement expires or is terminated, each participating Town
shall have the first option to purchase such vehicles, equipment and other capital items at
their fair market value, and shall also have first option to purchase at fair market value such
other of the NECCOG Animal Control Program capital assets as the Town desires.

Section 3 Agreement

A. This agreement may be amended in whole or in part by mutual agreement by NECCOG and
TOWN.

B. Itis the intention of the parties that the relationship of NECCOG to TOWN in the course of
the performance of its duties pursuant hereto is that of an independent Contractor.
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to constitute NECCOG as a partner,
joint venture, agent or employee of TOWN. NECCOG, as an independent Contractor, shall
be solely responsible for the hiring, discipline and management of NECCOG employees, and
all costs and expenses related thereto, including the payment {and withholding, if required)
of all applicable federal, state and local taxes. NECCOG and TOWN shall not be construed

page 3 of 5



as joint ventures or partners of each other and neither shall have the powers to bind or
obligate the other except as set forth in this Agreement.

If, at any time during the term of the Agreement, NECCOG, in the reasonable discretion of
TOWN: (a) has failed materially to provide services required in accordance with this
Agreement; (b) has become insolvent; (c) abandons the work; {d) subcontracts, assigns,
transfers, conveys or otherwise disposes of its obligations under the Agreement other than
as provided herein; or (e) repeatedly or materially fails to comply with any other term or
condition contained in the Agreement, TOWN shall have the right to terminate the
Agreement upon written notice to NECCOG.

In the event of termination by TOWN, TOWN’s payment obligation shall cease as of the
final date on which services in accordance with this Agreement are last performed by
NECCOG.

The waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by the other
party shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach. No waiver
shall be valid unless in writing and signed.

No part of this Agreement nor any rights or obligations hereunder, shall be assigned or
subcontracted without the prior written approval of TOWN. This is intended to be a
restriction on both the right and the power to assign, and any purported assignment not
consented to by TOWN as herein required shall be void, shall confer no rights on the
purported assignee and need not be recognized by TOWN. This Agreement shall be
binding upen and inure to the benefit of NECCOG and TOWN and their respective
permitted successors and assigns.

The invalidity or un-enforceability of any provision hereof shall in no way affect the validity
or enforceability of any other provision.

This Agreement shall be governed, construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of
the State of Connecticut, without regard to its conflicts of laws principles.

NECCOG agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Colchester and all of their
respective employees, volunteers and agents from (i} any and all claims or losses arising
from the negligent or intentional misconduct or failure of performance under this
Agreement, except those claims or losses arising from the negligent or intentional
misconduct of the Town of Colchester or ane of their respective employees, volunteers and
agents or {ii} a breach of any representation and warranty of NECCOG in this

Contract. NECCOG further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Colchester
and all of their respective employees, volunteers and agents from any and all claims or
losses alleged by any NECCOG employee against the Town of Colchester and all of their
respective employees, volunteers and agents, except those claims or losses arising from
the negligent or intentional misconduct of the Town of Colchester or one of their respective
employees, volunteers and agents.

page 4 of 5



1. This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties and supersedes and
replaces any and all previous understandings, written or oral, regarding the subject matter
of this Agreement. This Agreement may not be changed, except in an amendment signed
by both parties.

k. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed to be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.
Facsimile signatures shall be treated as original signatures.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year

first above written,

Northeastern Connecticut Town of Colchester
Council of Governments

John Filchak, Executive Director Mary Bylone, First Selectman
Date: Date:

Witness: Witness:

Date: Date:

page 5 of 5



